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Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading camera
and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group is primarily engaged
in the design, research, development, manufacture and sales of
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules with focus on
mid-to-high end camera and fingerprint recognition module market
for Chinese branded smart phone and tablet PC manufacturers.
The Group is one of the first few manufacturers in the PRC to
use chip on board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”) assembly
technologies in the manufacture of camera modules, as well as
to produce ultra-thin camera modules with resolution of 16 mega
pixels and 20 mega pixels on a mass production scale. We are
also one of the few manufacturers in the PRC that masters various
technologies and processes for mass production of fingerprint
recognition modules. Currently, our product mix covers camera
modules ranging from 3 mega pixels to 20 mega pixels, fingerprint
recognition modules, and one-stop solution for outdoor sports
camera.
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(“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or (A M Fir - R & 5E 0 5 45 #5085
otherwise indicated) 4h)
For the Year ended 31 December BEZE+t-BA=1+—HLEFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
=2l TN T T _"T——F
Consolidated
X

Operating results mexE
Revenue WA 2,202,395 2,161,084 1,410,613 637,786 283,442
Gross profit eS| 240,571 352,579 234,046 86,861 33,877
Finance costs BEKAK (9,948) (23,171) (9,010) (5,307) (591)
Profit before taxation K % A1 g F 114,701 239,077 188,172 54,322 42,251
Income tax charge FigHt (12,702 (43,571) (25,011) (3,852) (4,804)
Profit for the year FREF 101,999 195,506 168,161 50,470 37,447
Attributable to: 5B

Owners of the Company VNN 35 101,999 195,506 163,161 50,470 37,447

Non-controlling interests it e - - - - -

101,999 195,506 163,161 50,470 37,447
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(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

Five-Year Financial Summary

)

hFRT IR

(ARBETT SKREFLSHEBE

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1F —mE ZE-=F ZE-—-F ZZT——F
Consolidated
&
Basic earnings per share EXEGRAF
(RMB cents) (ARES) 10.1 31.8 32.6 N/A N/A
Diluted earnings per share BEEGRAT
(RMB cents) (AE®S) 9.8 29.6 30.9 N/A N/A
Assets and liabilities BEERAR
Non-current assets FERBEE 453,930 359,954 294,174 236,348 158,252
Current assets MBEE 1,536,731 1,942,579 1,468,266 885,144 321,666
Total assets BEEHAE 1,990,661 2,302,533 1,762,440 1,121,492 479,918
Bank borrowings RITER 142,164 712,679 427,581 84,527 =
Other liabilities Hin A& 630,940 465,566 1,066,260 935,613 434,064
Total liabilities BE4E 773,104 1,178,245 1,493,841 1,020,140 434,064
Net assets BEEFE 1,217,557 1,124,288 268,599 101,352 45,854
Total equity S 1,217,557 1,124,288 268,599 101,352 45,854
Key Financial Ratio TEHHLE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 10.9% 16.30% 16.60% 13.60% 12.00%
Net profit margin (%) H0 7R (%) 4.6% 9.00% 11.60% 7.90% 13.20%
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BARB B E%)
(Btet1) 11.7% 63.40% 213.60% 144.60% -
Rate of return on common FEERRE(%)
stockholders’ equity (%) 8.4% 17.4% 60.7% 49.8% 81.7%
Current ratio (times) BN E ()
(Note 2) (Hizt2) 2.0 1.7 1.1 0.9 0.8
Quick ratio (times) RE)LLE ()
(Note 3) (H17£3) 1.7 1.5 1 0.8 0.6
Net asset value per share KRR RERE A
attributable to owners of BHEBRFEE
the Company 1.18 1.12 0.54 0.20 0.09
Price per share as +ZA=+—H
at 31 December (HKD) FRER (B%) 1.59 2.20 N/A N/A N/A
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) ﬁ@i (Hi7t4) 13.19 5.46 N/A N/A N/A
Market capitalization as +-A=+—H
at 31 December (HKD) mE (E%) 1,634,447 2,200,000 N/A N/A N/A
Dividend per share BRRE - 0.0406 N/A N/A N/A
Dividend yield % B 2 - 0.0210 N/A N/A N/A
EBITDA EBITDA 167,098 293,574 207,297 70,134 48,291
Note 1:  Gearing ratio represents bank borrowings and related parties’  Mtit1 : BARBEL RIBIRITE T & B
loans divided by total equity as at the end of the year. ERBRNERREZSERE-
Note 2:  Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total A/7722 © REILLXRIBREBEELBERBRIANERE
current liabilities as of the end of the year. FROREBBERE-
Note 3:  Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories f/i23 ° HRE L RIERHEELEREFE
divided by total current liabilities as of the end of the year. E[if PEEERN BB EETE-
Note 4:  Price earnings ratio represents the market price of shares as of ~ ffi14 - BREFRREMBESR UATIRYK

the end of the year divided by earnings per share.
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Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”), the
second annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
since its listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the year of 2015, the path to global economic
recovery was still fraught with difficulties and challenges, while
the economic growth rate of the PRC continued to slow down.
At the same time, the median price of RMB versus US Dollar
(‘USD”) decreased by over 6% during the Year, far exceeded
that in the year of 2014. Despite the lowering of the reserve
ratio and benchmark interest rates by PRC’s central bank for
five times during the Year to increase money supply, however,
the GDP growth rate of the PRC for the Year still dropped below
7% for the first time in the past three decades. The securities
market also experienced a roller-coaster type fluctuation. In
view of the aforesaid situations, the structural adjustment of the
PRC economy still encountered multiple pressures. Despite the
complicated domestic and global economic environments and
the very unpromising situations in certain industries, the mobile
telecommunication industry still maintained its vigour. According to
the research data released by a leading market research, analysis
and advisory corporation specialising in information technology,
telecommunications and consumer technology, the shipment
volume of global mobile phones and smartphones still maintained
a growth during the Year, and the PRC branded smartphones,
in fact, had further improved their influence and market share
globally.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEBHSE

During the Year, as one of the main suppliers of camera
modules for mid-to-high end smartphone brands in the PRC,
the Group continued to adhere to the mission of providing
satisfactory experiences to customers and firmly implemented
the corporate strategy of dual adjustment in customer structure
and product mix. We successfully realized a continuous growth
in sales capacity, among which, the shipment volume of camera
modules reached approximately 98,390,000 units, representing
an increase of approximately 18.9% as compared with that of
year 2014. Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB2,202,395,000, representing an increase of approximately
1.9% as compared with that of year 2014. However, due to
competition in the industry and certain adverse conditions for
operation, including decrease in average selling price, increase in
manufacturing costs and increase in foreign exchange costs, the
gross profit of the Group dropped and led to a decrease in profit
after taxation of the Group during the Year. Profit after taxation
for the Year amounted to approximately RMB101,999,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 47.8% as compared with
that of year 2014. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
Year were approximately RMB0.101 and RMBO0.098, respectively.

During the Year, we consistently focused on the core corporate
strategy of dual adjustment in customer structure and product
mix. On the basis of continuously maintaining close and
favourable cooperation relationship with our core customers,
on one hand, we vigorously expanded overseas quality mobile
telecommunication terminal branded customers, achieving a
breakthrough in marketing several leading overseas smartphone
branded customers, and, on the other hand, we fully explored
the PRC branded smartphone manufacturers by taking the open
channels as main marketing channels, and had successfully
explored several well-known brand enterprises, including a
leading renowned brand in the PRC, and achieved our target
in customer structure adjustment. Furthermore, we constantly
enhanced our research and development (“R&D”) efforts and
technical innovation, continuously implemented improvements to

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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our production technologies in order to upgrade the quality of our
products. During the Year, we carried out product mix adjustment
progressively. On one hand, we successfully established a gradual
in-depth cooperative relationship with mainstream fingerprint
recognition chips suppliers such as Fingerprint Cards AB (“FPC”)
and Goodix, laying a solid foundation for entering the fingerprint
recognition module business, and, on the other hand, we
achieved a significant breakthrough in dual/multiple camera, phase
detection auto-focus (“PDAF”), optical image stabilization (“OIS”),
iris recognition, high-end products with over 20 mega pixels and
outdoor sports camera modules. Such adjustment in product mix
has shown initial results.

For traditional product pixel mix, our product mix also improved
to a certain extent during the Year. The shipment volume of
products with resolution of 5 mega pixels and higher accounted
for approximately 90.5% (2014: 84.0%) of the total shipment
volume and its revenue accounted for approximately 94.7%
(2014: 92.5%) of the total revenue. The shipment volume of
products with resolution of 8 mega pixels and higher accounted
for approximately 39.5% (2014: 19.7%) of the total shipment
volume and its revenue accounted for approximately 55.2%
(2014: 34.5%) of the total revenue. The shipment volume of
products with resolution of 13 mega pixels and higher accounted
for approximately 5.8% (2014: 2.6%) of the total shipment
volume and its revenue accounted for approximately 13.4%
(2014: 6.6%) of the total revenue. The above sales analysis of
product pixel mix demonstrated that there is increasing demand
for our high-end products which have gained recognition of the
market and customers. Although the increases in the shipment
volume and revenue of the products with 13 mega pixels and
higher were relatively moderate and the sales and promotion of
newly developed dual/multiple camera, PDAF, OIS products were
still in its initialization stage, we had successfully obtained the
qualification of high-end pixel products of all major customers
during the Year, which established a solid foundation for further
optimizing the Group’s product pixel mix.
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Chairman’s Statement
FBHSE

With the correct customer structure and product mix adjustment
strategy adopted by the management along with dedication of
all staff, we managed to maintain a stable growth in business
capacity and achieved our anticipated goals of adjusting
customer structure smoothly under a difficult, complicated and
competitive market environment, laying a good foundation for the
subsequent continuous optimization of product mix. Meanwhile,
the Company continued to maintain its healthy corporate culture
and management structure and devotes unremitting efforts in the
R&D of high-end products and automated production, earned
good market reputation and received positive recognition from
the industry and clients. These efforts had established a solid
foundation for the Group for forging a better brand image.

After taking into consideration of our operation strategies and in
order to maintain sufficient working capital, the Board does not
recommend the payment of any final dividend for the Year.

AWARDS AND HONORS

In 2015, we continued to adhere to the customer-oriented service
strategies and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’ needs
in product R&D, delivery, quality and technology innovation, which
helped us to earn positive recognition of our products and services
from the industry, the local government and our customers.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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In August 2015, Kunshan Q Technology Limited (“Kunshan QT
China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, won the “Best
Cooperation Award” presented by Shanghai HUAQIN Telecom
Technology Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Huagin”) at the 10th anniversary
of Shanghai Huagin, and became the only module manufacturer to
receive such award.

In November 2015, Kunshan QT China won the 2015 “Global
Partner Excellence Award” given by ZTE Corporation. This is the
fourth consecutive year that Kunshan QT China has won the said
award.

In November 2015, Kunshan QT China won the 2015 “Core
Supplier of the Year Award” and “High Quality Supplier Award”
awarded by Yulong Computer Telecommunication Scientific
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.. This is also the second time that Kunshan
QT China has won the said awards.

In February 2016, Kunshan QT China was awarded the 2015 “Top
Ten Brand-building Enterprise” in Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. This is the first time that Kunshan QT China has won
this award. Kunshan QT China will also be awarded a bonus
amounting to RMB1,000,000 by the Kunshan Municipal People’s
Government.

The aforementioned awards and honors had reflected the high
recognition of us by the local government and our core customers,
which has enhanced our confidence in driving the product mix
optimization strategies and maintaining sound operation.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEBHSE

PROSPECTS

As far as we are aware and concerned, 2016 will still be full of
challenges. On one hand, the global and domestic economic
environments are still fraught with uncertainties, the adjustment
to the PRC economic structure still requires time and the
growth in overseas demand still has uncertainties. Moreover, the
uncertainties in the prospect of the mobile telecommunication
industry also remain high under the macro economic environment.
On the other hand, affected by multiple factors such as politics,
economy, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB against
USD s still subject to great uncertainties and the control task of
our exchange risks remains heavy. However, we believe that the
smart mobile telecommunication terminals industry in 2016 will still
be prosperous, and the demand for innovative products will bring
more opportunities for the Group. On one hand, our adjustment in
customer structure has demonstrated its initial results. This helps
the Group to establish cooperation relationship in full pixel with
certain leading mobile phone brands in the PRC and a number
of top brands from overseas and also achieve a substantive
breakthrough in the R&D and production of new products including
PDAF, dual/multiple camera module and face recognition, thereby
building a good foundation for striving to realize the continuous
growth in our sales capacity and the significant improvement
in product pixel mix. On the other hand, as disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 29 January 2016, the
Group has commenced mass production and sales of fingerprint
recognition modules (“Fingerprint Recognition Business”), and has
established cooperation relationship with two leading smartphone
brands manufacturers in China, which is expected to lay a solid
foundation for the Group for achieving business growth highlights
in the forthcoming financial years along with the development of
the new products sector. Therefore, we shall maintain a service
strategy that focuses on customer experience, further improve
the development of new products and new technology, elevate
our automated production standards, actively enhance the
percentage of sales of products with 13 mega pixels and higher
and aggressively drive the exploration of Fingerprint Recognition
Business. Also, we shall continue our efforts in expanding the
business cooperation with target customers, further optimizing our
customer structure and product mix and improving our influence in
and contribution to the industry.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Recalling the past, looking at today and prospecting the future,
we are confident in leading our staff to tackle challenges, seize
opportunities and maximize returns for our shareholders. At the
same time, we are also fully aware that, under the ever changing
macro environment, our business is facing various challenges.
As the ever-intense industry competition might lead to even more
intense price competition, the task of developing target customers
might not be accomplished as expected, and we might not
achieve our goals of product mix optimization on schedule. Given
that the Group might continue to focus on sales in the domestic
market and a considerable number of core components rely on
import purchases, and that the currency rates of RMB against
USD might be subject to even higher uncertainty, the Group is
still confronted with foreign exchange risks. Therefore, we would
require more persistent efforts than just confidence alone to
achieve better results.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We sincerely thank the directors, the management and the entire
staff for their dedication and loyal services to the Group, without
which we would not have witnessed increasing sales growth.
| would personally like to take this opportunity to give thanks
on behalf of the board of directors to the shareholders, clients,
partners, suppliers and banks for their trust and support accorded.

He Ningning
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2016

Chairman’s Statement
FEBHMSE

CBSHRAE RMAELE
RrREBTE@HKE  ERE BHE
BRAEEZ O - BRE BB tTH
BRZERRTESL RANEHKE
mEERE TERFAUEEMANE
HESAENERESE RAYBEESR
FOHMBERCEINBERRE  Zmi
BEECTIERBETERNYBZ TH
£ B 2 R 2K — B B [ 79 A BE A0 5 A Y 85
A A0 7T AR 1R BT DA O 3R
BRE EARBAXITERIREEME
BANBRT KEINAREEE—E
R EE SR s AR © B - BAPIRE O R B
EEBELARE NATERZUE
SRS

XE

]

==
=]

Jrtic
G

\

&)

AEERLRHAEE EEEBEKR LR
BE I RAKEMEN RS H KBS

HHERRESEAZBR BFF  AF

BH HEBLRITHAEE -BXK
{5 1 e ST BUABIAL

TE
G-

BB
—E-AF=A=t+mA

E#BE (SE)ERAA
Pl 15



Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the year of 2015, the path to global economic
recovery was still fraught with difficulties and challenges, while
the economic growth rate of the PRC continued to slow down. At
the same time, the median price of RMB versus USD decreased
by over 6% during the Year, far exceeded that in the year of
2014. Despite the lowering of the reserve ratio and benchmark
interest rates by PRC’s central bank for five times during the Year
to increase money supply, however, the GDP growth rate of the
PRC for the Year still dropped below 7% for the first time in the
past three decades. The securities market also experienced a
roller-coaster type fluctuation. In view of the aforesaid situations,
the structural adjustment of the PRC economy still encountered
multiple pressures. Despite the complicated domestic and global
economic environments and the very unpromising situations in
certain industries, the mobile telecommunication industry still
maintained its vigour. According to the research data released
by a leading market research, analysis and advisory corporation
specialising in information technology, telecommunications and
consumer technology, the shipment volume of global mobile
phones and smartphones still maintained a growth during the Year,
and the PRC branded smartphones, in fact, had further improved
their influence and market share globally.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, as one of the main suppliers of camera
modules for mid-to-high end smartphone brands in the PRC,
the Group continued to adhere to the mission of providing
satisfactory experiences to customers and firmly implemented
the corporate strategy of dual adjustment in customer structure
and product mix. We successfully realized a continuous growth
in sales capacity, among which, the shipment volume of camera
modules reached approximately 98,390,000 units, representing
an increase of approximately 18.9% as compared with that of
year 2014. Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB2,202,395,000, representing an increase of approximately
1.9% as compared with that of year 2014. However, due to
competition in the industry and certain adverse conditions for
operation, including decrease in average selling price, increase in
manufacturing costs and increase in foreign exchange costs, the
gross profit of the Group dropped and led to a decrease in profit
after taxation of the Group during the Year. Profit after taxation
for the Year amounted to approximately RMB101,999,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 47.8% as compared with
that of year 2014. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
Year were approximately RMB0.101 and RMBO0.098, respectively.

During the Year, we consistently focused on the core corporate
strategy of dual adjustment in customer structure and product
mix. On the basis of continuously maintaining close and
favourable cooperation relationship with our core customers,
on one hand, we vigorously expanded overseas quality mobile
telecommunication terminal branded customers, achieving a
breakthrough in marketing several leading overseas smartphone
branded customers, and, on the other hand, we fully explored
the PRC branded smartphone manufacturers by taking the open
channels as main marketing channels, and had successfully
explored several well-known brand enterprises, including a leading
renowned brand in the PRC, and achieved our target in customer
structure adjustment. Furthermore, we constantly enhanced our
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R&D efforts and technical innovation, continuously implemented
improvements to our production technologies in order to upgrade
the quality of our products. During the Year, we carried out product
mix adjustment progressively. On one hand, we successfully
established a gradual in-depth cooperative relationship with
mainstream fingerprint recognition chips suppliers such as FPC
and Goodix, laying a solid foundation for entering the fingerprint
recognition module business, and, on the other hand, we achieved
a significant breakthrough in dual/multiple camera, PDAF, OIS,
iris recognition, high-end products with over 20 mega pixels and
outdoor sports camera modules. Such adjustment in product mix
has shown initial results.

For traditional product pixel mix, our product mix also improved
to a certain extent during the Year. The shipment volume of
products with resolution of 5 mega pixels and higher accounted
for approximately 90.5% (2014: 84.0%) of the total shipment
volume and its revenue accounted for approximately 94.7%
(2014: 92.5%) of the total revenue. The shipment volume of
products with resolution of 8 mega pixels and higher accounted
for approximately 39.5% (2014: 19.7%) of the total shipment
volume and its revenue accounted for approximately 55.2%
(2014: 34.5%) of the total revenue. The shipment volume of
products with resolution of 13 mega pixels and higher accounted
for approximately 5.8% (2014: 2.6%) of the total shipment
volume and its revenue accounted for approximately 13.4%
(2014: 6.6%) of the total revenue. The above sales analysis of
product pixel mix demonstrated that there is increasing demand
for our high-end products which have gained recognition of the
market and customers. Although the increases in the shipment
volume and revenue of the products with 13 mega pixels and
higher were relatively moderate and the sales and promotion of
newly developed dual/multiple camera, PDAF, OIS products were
still in its initialization stage, we had successfully obtained the
qualification of high-end pixel products of all major customers
during the Year, which established a solid foundation for further
optimizing the Group’s product pixel mix.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the correct customer structure and product mix adjustment
strategy adopted by the management along with dedication of
all staff, we managed to maintain a stable growth in business
capacity and achieved our anticipated goals of adjusting
customer structure smoothly under a difficult, complicated and
competitive market environment, laying a good foundation for the
subsequent continuous optimization of product mix. Meanwhile,
the Company continued to maintain its healthy corporate culture
and management structure and devotes unremitting efforts in the
R&D of high-end products and automated production, earned
good market reputation and received positive recognition from
the industry and clients. These efforts had established a solid
foundation for the Group for forging a better brand image.

After taking into consideration of our operation strategies and in
order to maintain sufficient working capital, the Board does not
recommend the payment of any final dividend for the Year.

AWARDS AND HONORS

In 2015, we continued to adhere to the customer-oriented service
strategies and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’ needs
in product R&D, delivery, quality and technology innovation, which
helped us to earn positive recognition of our products and services
from the industry, the local government and our customers.
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In August 2015, Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, won the “Best Cooperation Award” presented by
Shanghai Huagin at the 10th anniversary of Shanghai Huagin, and
became the only module manufacturer to receive such award.

In November 2015, Kunshan QT China won the 2015 “Global
Partner Excellence Award” given by ZTE Corporation. This is the
fourth consecutive year that Kunshan QT China has won the said
award.

In November 2015, Kunshan QT China won the 2015 “Core
Supplier of the Year Award” and “High Quality Supplier Award”
awarded by Yulong Computer Telecommunication Scientific
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.. This is also the second time that Kunshan
QT China has won the said awards.

In February 2016, Kunshan QT China was awarded the 2015 “Top
Ten Brand-building Enterprise” in Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. This is the first time that Kunshan QT China has won
this award. Kunshan QT China will also be awarded a bonus
amounting to RMB1,000,000 by the Kunshan Municipal People’s
Government.

The aforementioned awards and honors had reflected the high
recognition of us by the local government and our core customers,
which has enhanced our confidence in driving the product mix
optimization strategies and maintaining sound operation.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

As far as we are aware and concerned, 2016 will still be full of
challenges. On one hand, the global and domestic economic
environments are still fraught with uncertainties, the adjustment
to the PRC economic structure still requires time and the
growth in overseas demand still has uncertainties. Moreover, the
uncertainties in the prospect of the mobile telecommunication
industry also remain high under the macro economic environment.
On the other hand, affected by multiple factors such as politics,
economy, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB against
USD s still subject to great uncertainties and the control task of
our exchange risks remains heavy. However, we believe that the
smart mobile telecommunication terminals industry in 2016 will still
be prosperous, and the demand for innovative products will bring
more opportunities for the Group. On one hand, our adjustment in
customer structure has demonstrated its initial results. This helps
the Group to establish cooperation relationship in full pixel with
certain leading mobile phone brands in the PRC and a number
of top brands from overseas and also achieve a substantive
breakthrough in the R&D and production of new products including
PDAF, dual/multiple camera module and face recognition, thereby
building a good foundation for striving to realize the continuous
growth in our sales capacity and the significant improvement
in product pixel mix. On the other hand, as disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 29 January 2016, the
Group has commenced mass production and sales of fingerprint
recognition modules (“Fingerprint Recognition Business”), and has
established cooperation relationship with two leading smartphone
brands manufacturers in China, which is expected to lay a solid
foundation for the Group for achieving business growth highlights
in the forthcoming financial years along with the development of
the new products sector. Therefore, we shall maintain a service
strategy that focuses on customer experience, further improve
the development of new products and new technology, elevate
our automated production standards, actively enhance the
percentage of sales of products with 13 mega pixels and higher
and aggressively drive the exploration of Fingerprint Recognition
Business. Also, we shall continue our efforts in expanding the
business cooperation with target customers, further optimizing our
customer structure and product mix and improving our influence in
and contribution to the industry.
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Recalling the past, looking at today and prospecting the future,
we are confident in leading our staff to tackle challenges, seize
opportunities and maximize returns for our shareholders. At the
same time, we are also fully aware that, under the ever changing
macro environment, our business is facing various challenges.
As the ever-intense industry competition might lead to even more
intense price competition, the task of developing target customers
might not be accomplished as expected, and we might not
achieve our goals of product mix optimization on schedule. Given
that the Group might continue to focus on sales in the domestic
market and a considerable number of core components rely on
import purchases, and that the currency rates of RMB against
USD might be subject to even higher uncertainty, the Group is
still confronted with foreign exchange risks. Therefore, we would
require more persistent efforts than just confidence alone to
achieve better results.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB2,202,395,000, representing an increase of approximately
1.9% or RMB41,311,000 as compared with that of last year. While
there was an increase in shipment volume of camera modules
of approximately 18.9% as compared with that of last year, the
modest growth in revenue was mainly attributed to a decrease in
average selling price of camera modules of approximately 14.3%
as compared with that of last year.

Cost of sales

For the Year, cost of sales of the Group increased by
approximately 8.5% from approximately RMB1,808,505,000 to
approximately RMB1,961,824,000 as compared with that of last
year. The increase in the cost of sales of the Group was primarily
attributed to (i) the increase in the total input costs of raw materials
by approximately 7.0% to approximately RMB1,744,614,000 as
compared with that of last year; (ii) the increase in direct labor
cost by approximately 30.3% to approximately RMB111,126,000
as compared with that of last year; and (iii) the increase in
depreciation cost that was attributed to manufacturing cost
by approximately 28.4% to approximately RMB33,673,000 as
compared with that of last year.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB240,571,000 (2014: RMB352,579,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 31.8% as compared with that of last
year. Gross profit margin was approximately 10.9% (2014: 16.3%),
representing a decrease of approximately 5.4% as compared
with that of last year. The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly attributable to: (i) the decrease in average selling price of
approximately 14.3% as compared with that of last year which
was faster than the decrease in average purchasing price of
raw materials of approximately 12.6% as compared with that of
last year; (ii) the impact of RMB depreciation in 2015; and (iii) an
increase in manufacturing cost for the Year, mainly caused by the
increase in labor cost as compared with that of last year.

Other revenue

For the Year, other revenue of the Group decreased by
approximately 33.5% from approximately RMB35,539,000 to
approximately RMB23,622,000 as compared with that of last year.
The decrease was primarily due to a decrease of approximately
RMB21,664,000 in investment income from the available-for-sale
financial assets of the Group from approximately RMB26,405,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
RMB4,741,000 for the Year, notwithstanding that (i) there was an
increase of approximately RMB6,075,000 in interest income from
the deposits of the Group from approximately RMB5,236,000 in
2014 to approximately RMB11,311,000 for the Year; and (ii) there
was an increase of approximately RMB2,801,000 in grants from
Kunshan Government to award the listing of the Company and the
technology upgrade re-engineering as compared with that of last
year.

Other net loss

For the Year, the Group had other net loss of approximately
RMB31,476,000, representing an increase of approximately
344.8% from that of approximately RMB7,077,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The increase was mainly attributed to
the depreciation of RMB against USD during the Year.
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Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, total selling and distribution expenses of the
Group increased by approximately 10.4% from approximately
RMB5,647,000 (2014) to RMB6,237,000 for the Year, which
accounted for approximately 0.3% (2014: 0.3%) of the revenue.
The increase in selling and distribution expenses was mainly
attributed to the increase of sales staff’s salaries during the Year.

Administrative and other operating expenses

For the Year, total administrative and other operating expenses
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB27,505,000 (2014
RMB39,7283,000), representing a decrease of approximately
30.8% as compared with that of last year, which accounted for
approximately 1.2% (2014: 1.8%) of the revenue. The decrease in
administrative and other operating expenses was mainly attributed
to the relevant listing expenses of RMB16,892,000 in 2014 not
being incurred in 2015 despite of an increase of management
personnel salaries as compared with that of 2014.

R&D expenses

For the Year, total R&D expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB74,326,000 (2014: RMB73,423,000),
representing an increase of approximately 1.2% as compared
with that of last year, which accounted for approximately 3.4%
(2014: 3.4%) of the revenue. The increase in R&D expenses for the
Year was mainly attributed to the additional efforts and resources
devoted to the research of new products and new functionality by
the Group. This allowed the Group to develop products with higher
pixels, enhance functionality and diversification, such as dual
camera, OIS, fingerprint recognition, PDAF, gesture recognition,
new products such as outdoor sports camera and precise
algorithm, as well as to optimize and enhance the standards of
production techniques.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately 57.1%
from approximately RMB23,171,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately RMB9,948,000 for the Year,
which was primarily due to the decrease in interest expenses
as a result of the decreased bank borrowings of the Group by
approximately 80.1%.
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Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
70.8% from approximately RMB43,571,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately RMB12,702,000 for the Year,
which was primarily due to (i) the decrease in gross profit margin
and depreciation of RMB against USD that resulted in a decrease
of approximately 52.0% in profit before taxation as compared with
that of last year; (ii) the decrease in non-deductible share-based
payments and listing expenses by approximately RMB2,449,000
and RMB16,892,000 respectively for the Year as compared with
that of last year, which reduced the taxation for the Year; and (iii)
the increase of bonus deduction allowance of R&D expenses,
which lowered the effective tax rate to approximately 11.1% (2014:
18.2%).

Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
successfully renewed the HNTE qualification on 6 July 2015, and
obtained the certificate recognized as a high and new technology
enterprise. Kunshan QT China will continue to enjoy preferential
policies of income tax rate of 15% and bonus deduction allowance
of R&D expenses commenced from 1 January 2015. Chengdu
Q Technology Limited (“Chengdu QT”), another wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was recognized as a software
enterprise. According to the relevant PRC policies, Chengdu QT
is entitled to preferential policies in a value-added tax levy-refund
and “2-year exemption and 3-year half payment” of income tax
commenced from 1 January 2015.

Profit for the year

For the Year, profit of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB101,999,000 (2014: RMB195,506,000), a decrease of
approximately 47.8% as compared with that of last year. Net profit
margin for the Year was approximately 4.6% (2014: 9.0%). The fall
in profit for the Year was mainly attributed to the decrease in gross
profit and the increase in foreign exchange loss.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB142,164,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 80.1% from approximately RMB712,679,000 as
at 31 December 2014. All of those bank borrowings are payable
within 1 year with average annual interest rate of approximately
3.03%.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and/or USD.

For each of the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
cash flow overview of the Group are set out as follows:

RBELRUMBER
8817 18 3

R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—H &X5H
RIERTTIE R B AR®E142,164,0007T
BE_Z-—NFE+_A=Z+—HHHAR
#6712,679,000 7T 2 £980.1% ° FT A iR
TERHFEHFENEEL A3.08%  HiFR
—FREE-

R-E—HRFE+-_A=+—8 AK&EE
ZHRITERUNAREE S ETstE-

AEBNRBE-_E—RET-_A=1+—
BrtEERBE-_ZT—HN&E+ A
St-RLEFEMNRSABRMOT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEFE
2014
—E—lF
RMB
AR¥T

Net cash flow generated from BB E £
operating activities RenEF5HE
Net cash flow generated from REREEEN
investing activities Rem=e /¥
Net cash flow used in financing activities ~ Bt & /EBFE A K

REREFE

At the end of the Year, the decrease in cash and cash equivalents
of the Group was mainly due to the increase in net cash generated
from operating activities; however, there was an outflow in net
cash used in financing activities, which has led to the balance of
cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015 amounting
to approximately RMB282,215,000, a decrease of approximately
RMB270,889,000 as compared with that of 31 December 2014.
Such cash and cash equivalents are denominated in USD, RMB
and HKD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating activities

For the Year, the net cash flow from operating activities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB323,999,000, representing
an increase of approximately RMB20,290,000 as compared with
that of last year, which was primarily attributed to: () the fact that
the Group no longer repaid the advance from related companies
through the endorsement of bills receivable by the end of 2014,
so that the Group could receive the fund itself when the bills
receivable matured during the Year; and (ii) the slight increase in
sales volume of the Group in 2015 as compared with that of 2014.

Investing activities

The net cash inflow from investing activities of the Group in 2015
amounted to approximately RMB4,067,000, which was mainly
due to the purchase of equipment and construction of plants
with a total amount of approximately RMB137,145,000, the
net inflow of redeeming available-for-sale financial assets and
purchase of available-for-sale financial assets of approximately
RMB126,741,000, and the inflow of interest received of
approximately RMB12,871,000.

Financing activities

The net cash outflow from financing activities of the Group as at
31 December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB617,697,000.
The main factors affecting the net cash outflow from financing
activities include the payment of dividends to the Company’s
shareholders of approximately RMB41,699,000, the proceeds
from bank borrowings of approximately RMB312,379,000, and
the outflow of repayment of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB966,180,000.
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Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
11.7%, which had considerably improved when compared with
that of approximately 63.4% as at 31 December 2014. Such
improvement was due to (i) the repayment of bank borrowings
during the Year, which reduced the amount of bank borrowings
from approximately RMB712,679,000 as at 31 December 2014
to approximately RMB142,164,000 as at 31 December 2015,
representing a decrease of approximately 80.1%; and (ii) the profit
recorded for the Year of approximately RMB101,999,000 which
had exceeded the dividends paid to shareholders of approximately
RMB41,699,000 in the first half of 2015.

Treasury policies

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), and there
was no amendment to the Group’s treasury policy during the Year.
The Board, the risk management committee of the Board (“Risk
Management Committee”) and the staff at the relevant positions
always remain alert to the performance and risk assessment of
the available-for-sale financial assets so as to assure that the
wealth management operation does not pose excessive risk to
the principal amount. At the same time, the Company also pays
attention to the liquidity position of the Group in order to ensure
that the sufficiency of its working capital is not affected.

On a meeting of the Risk Management Committee held on 24
March 2016, the members of the Risk Management Committee
reviewed and passed certain amendments to the funds
management policy of the Group, including:

1)  the increase in transaction amount of non-principal protected
wealth management that requires approval of the Risk
Management Committee. After the amendments, the chief
financial officer shall complete the approval for a single
transaction of wealth management business operation with
transaction amount of RMB50 million or below (inclusive of
RMB50 million) (previously RMB10 million or below (inclusive
of RMB10 million)), while a single transaction of wealth
management business operation with transaction amount
exceeding RMB50 million (exclusive of RMB50 million)
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(previously exceeding RMB10 million (exclusive of RMB10
million)) will, in addition, require approval from the Risk
Management Committee. Further, the amount of an instructed
single transaction was amended from not exceeding RMB50
million to not exceeding RMB50 million “in principle”; and

certain adjustments on the restrictions towards the input
of funds to non-principal protected wealth management
business, including: (i) the previous restriction on input of
funds to wealth management products issued by commercial
banks ranked outside top 10 in the PRC was adjusted and
relaxed to restricting input of funds to commercial banks
ranked outside top 20 (inclusive) in the PRC; (i) the risk level
for all bank wealth management products in which input of
funds was restricted was adjusted from “exceeding low to
medium risk” to restricting input of funds to “high risk” wealth
management products; (iii) the previous restriction on input
of funds to wealth management products with duration of
“more than one year” was amended to restricting input of
funds to wealth management products with duration of “more
than one year (exclusive of one year)”. Further, the previous
restriction on input of funds to wealth management products
not accepted as security for financing and with duration of
“not exceeding one year” was amended to restricting input
of funds to wealth management products “not accepted as
security for financing or issuance of bills payables” and with
duration of “exceeding three months”; (iv) the restriction on
“prohibition on repurchase of wealth management products
which are non-principal protected, with floating income and
unable to purchase insurance coverage” was deleted; and
(v) for non-principal protected wealth management products
instructed by the Company which are fixed term and covered
by insurance purchased on the financing principal, the
maximum balance of which has been increased from not
exceeding RMB300 million or equivalent to not exceeding
RMB one billion or equivalent.

EI2E51smE i

EREZEeRI N BEELTES
EHRTSHBBARKS5 0008 TIERT
BTRAE]I 5B ARKS5000
Erx: R

& © 3% 17 FER AN 12 B 575 A9 BR
e E TR B ()RR HE
ERABERBEFRBE10E AINDE
¥RTBTNEVER BEENR
HESRAAREKNEARIES
AR EFRRH20% (BE5520%)
AN 2R T: ()RBIE A
METERITENERRBRSHH 8B
BEEFHIABRZRHIESEA
[ E b | B E®: ()RR &
SIRAHR [HBR—F | WEBEHE®R
BT AR ESRARR [BiE—F
(TE—F)|MEMER LI %
RIRFIESIATERANUNZ B'E
HETHEMNPERA [ RBAB—F
MEFERINEBTARIIESEA
[TEE A BEHRETTRE KFLIE
NEEINBERAHBA=EAIHN
BB EM: (VMR EFRBEHF
RAZENE B ELEERR TN
BEMNEMER] R RVER
RAIFTEFIERAEEHR - #1
BERREZREASHKREEN
Em HBTELIBRATSEREEE
AREIRTEMETSBBEEA
R¥E10E T -

E#BE (SE)ERAA
2015 F 3R P4



Management Discussion and Analysis

SR @ 575mE i

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, there were no legally binding
agreements or arrangements with respect to any material
investment opportunities entered into by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the assets pledged by the Group
were bank deposits and bills receivable of approximately
RMB172,647,000, which were pledged as security for bank
borrowings and bills payable. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
did not have any available-for-sale financial assets which were
pledged.
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EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 1,314
employees (31 December 2014:
labor service agreements and internship agreements). During the

1,175) (excluding staff under

Year, the Group has adopted an equal policy on remuneration
with same position receiving same package and provides all staff
with fair working and living environment, specific responsibility
guidelines, and competitive salary benefits. Total remuneration of
the employees of the Group (including the Directors’ emoluments)
for the Year was approximately RMB151,049,000 (31 December
2014: RMB119,030,000). Apart from basic salary, the package
also includes year-end bonus, medical insurance and social
insurances (staff under labor service agreements and internship
agreements are treated according to the laws and regulations
of the PRC). During the Year, the Company issued a total of
27,945,000 ordinary shares to 44 staff of the Group pursuant to
their exercises of share options granted to them under the pre-
IPO share option scheme and a share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 13 November 2014 (for details, please refer
to subsection D1 and D2 headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” of Appendix IV “Statutory and
General Information” of the Prospectus). The exercise price of
all of the above share options was RMBO0.40 per share, and the
total consideration received was RMB11,178,000. The stability of
core management and technicians was thereby basically secured.
Further, during the Year, the Company continued to provide on-
the-job training together with other training programmes for
the employees at different positions to improve their skills and
knowledge.

Except for the above, no other shares were issued by the Group
during the Year.

DONATION TO SOCIETY

For the Year, in response to the appeal of Kunshan Municipal
Government, Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, participated in the “Charity Donation Day” activity held in
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and donated RMB200,000
to the Civil Administration Welfare Foundation in Yushan Town,
Kunshan, for supporting its philanthropy in helping the illness,
elderly, minor and weak or disabled.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
borrowings, product sales and purchase of raw materials which
give rise to receivables, payables, cash balances and loans
that are denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB.
The currencies that give rise to our currency risk are primarily
generated from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB. During the Year, exchange loss of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB30,878,000. As affected
by various factors in politics, economic, supply and demand, the
currency trend of RMB against USD is still largely uncertain in the
future. The control task in exchange risk is still very burdensome,
and the Group will strive to control the overall exchange risk
through various measures such as to increase USD income by
strengthening overseas business expansion, actively coordinate
with overseas suppliers to purchase domestically or make
settlement in RMB, increase the proportion of USD deposits to
total deposits balance, decrease the proportion of USD loans to
total loans balance, and enhance monitoring of the exchange rate
fluctuation on a daily basis.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

On 2 December 2014, the shares of the Company were initially
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The net
proceeds from the above global offering were approximately
HK$658,000,000 (after deducting relevant listing expenses).
As at 31 December 2015, the balance of the fund raised was
approximately 34.3% or approximately HK$225,801,000, and the
utilized net proceeds were approximately 65.7% or approximately
HK$432,199,000. Among the utilized net proceeds, (i)
approximately HK$97,959,000 was utilised to purchase production
and testing machinery and equipment; (ii) approximately
HK$112,235,000 was utilised to enhance R&D capabilities;
(i) approximately HK$101,984,000 was utilised to expand the
production base; (iv) approximately HK$46,715,000 was utilised
to repay bank borrowings; (v) approximately HK$7,611,000 was
utilised for overseas sales and procurement and future expansion
to the overseas markets; and (vi) approximately HK$65,695,000
was utilised for general corporate purposes.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board had
recommended the payment of a final dividend of approximately
RMB41,699,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$52,858,000)
to the shareholders of the Company, and the payment of such
dividends was made in June 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 20
May 2016, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 18 May 2016 to Friday, 20 May 2016, both days
inclusive. All transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 17 May 2016 for registration.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Pursuant to the applicable Company Law of the Cayman Islands
and the articles of association of the Company, the Company may
repurchase its shares under certain restrictions, and must comply
with any of the applicable requirements implemented by the Stock
Exchange from time to time when the Board exercises such right
on behalf of the Company. During the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed shares.
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On 1 February 2016 (the “Date of Board Resolution”), the
Board convened a meeting and passed various resolutions (the
“Repurchase Resolutions”) in relation to, amongst other matters,
the repurchase of up to 5,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Relevant Shares”) pursuant to a buy-back mandate granted
by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2015 (the “2015 AGM”).
The Relevant Shares represented approximately 0.494% of the
aggregate number of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of the 2015 AGM and approximately 0.486% of the aggregate
number of the issued shares of the Company as at the Date of
Board Resolution. As at the date of this report, the Company had
not repurchased any of its shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Resolutions. The proposed repurchase of any of the Relevant
Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Resolutions may or may not
proceed.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has all along strictly complied with the environmental
protection laws and policies applicable to the respective
member companies of the Group where the jurisdictions of such
companies are located. For the Year, the Group had newly added,
formulated and implemented a number of rules and regulations
in relation to environmental protection management such as the
implementation of Wastewater Management Regulations to further
perfect the wastewater treatment system, and had strengthened
its management and control in production and domestic sewage
to ensure that the wastewater discharge is in compliance
with statutory requirements. The Group had also amended its
implementation of the Fire Safety Management Regulations with
particular focus on strengthening of a self-check of the fire control
facilities and improving the fire prevention and control capability,
and successfully obtained the compliance certificate granted by
High-Tech Industry Development Environmental Protection Zone of
Kunshan.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
SN Annual Report 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (“Mr. He”), aged 45, was appointed as a Director
on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 13 November 2014. He is the chairman of the Board and has
been the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) since 13 November 2014. He is
primarily responsible for overall strategic planning and formulation
of investment strategies of our Group. Mr. He founded Kunshan Q
Technology Limited (& Il L A E F R AR A 7)) (“Kunshan
QT China”) in October 2007 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the electrical and electronic industries. Prior to
founding the Group, Mr. He served as a sales officer of Samsung
Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co., Ltd. (R =EZB#ERE R
7)), a manufacturer of electronic components, from July 1992
to April 1997 where he was primarily responsible for sales and
delivery management. In November 2000 and June 2004, Mr. He
founded Surewheel Asia Pacific Limited (£ ZE B KGR A
A]) (“Surewheel”), a company principally engaged in agency sales
of printheads, and Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom Equipment Co.,
Ltd. CRYITm AR ZEBERMEZEBR A F) (“Shenzhen CK”),
a company principally engaged in the research, development
and sales of complete handsets components, and has been the
director of Surewheel and chairman of Shenzhen CK. Mr. He is
primarily responsible for the strategic planning. In December 2004,
Mr. He founded CK Telecom Limited ( 78 &] i 1= £ 17 :& & (7]
JE) BB A A]) (“Heyuan CK"), a company principally engaged in
the sales and manufacturing of complete handsets and handset
components and modules, and has been the chairman of Heyuan
CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for the strategic planning of
Heyuan CK. Mr. He is the sole director and the sole shareholder
of Q Technology Investment Inc. (“QT Investment”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company as at the date of this report. Mr. He
received his bachelor’'s degree in science, majoring in dynamic
meteorology, from the Peking University in July 1992 and his
master’'s degree of business administration from the University of
California in March 2002. Mr. He is the step-brother of Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, an executive Director and the chief financial officer of
the Group.
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Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China)
Inc. (formerly known as “CK Telecom (Great China) Inc.”), Kunshan
Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan QT Hong Kong”),
Kunshan QT China, each of which is a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Yang Peikun (“Mr. Yang”), aged 36, has served as the general
manager of Kunshan QT China since 2010 and is primarily
responsible for the overall business operations of Kunshan QT
China. He was appointed as a Director on 5 May 2014 and was
re-designated as an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company and the general manager of Kunshan QT
China on 13 November 2014. Mr. Yang is a director of Kunshan
QT China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang worked at ZTE
Corporation (FE B KD ER A F)), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 763) and
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000063) and which is
engaged in the design, development, production, distribution and
installation of a broad range of advanced telecommunications
equipment, from July 2004 to August 2007. From December 2007
to September 2013, he held various positions in Shenzhen CK and
last served as the assistant to chairman of the board and assisted
with internal management. Mr. Yang received his bachelor’s
degree in management (majoring in financial management), and his
master’s degree in management (majoring in accounting), from the
Wuhan University in June 2001 and June 2004, respectively.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
CIsM Annual Report 2015
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Mr. Wang Jianqgiang (“Mr. Wang”), aged 44, was appointed
as a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. Wang is the chief
financial officer of the Group and is primarily responsible for audit
management and budgeting of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wang served as a supervisor of the quality assurance
department of SAE Magnetics ( RZ#H R E FH) ,

hardware manufacturer, from October 1995 to September 1996,

a computer

where he was primarily responsible for product quality assurance.
From August 1998 to January 2005, he served as the sales
assistant manager of the Shenzhen office of Samsung Electro-
Mechanics (H.K.) Limited (Z2F# (FF)EBR2QA), a
manufacturer of electronic components, where he was primarily
responsible for the sales of the electronic components. From
February 2005 to April 2014 and December 2005 to April 2014,
respectively, Mr. Wang served as the chief financial officer of
Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where he was primarily responsible
for audit management and budgeting. Mr. Wang received his
bachelor’'s degree in engineering, majoring in fluid machinery
and engineering, from the Sichuan University of Science and
Technology (P9)I| T2 p%) in June 1995. Mr. Wang is the step-
brother of Mr. He, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, Chengdu
Q Technology Limited ( A EB K% & F BB R A ) and Taiwan
Q Technology Co., Ltd., each of which is a subsidiary of the
Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (“Mr. Chu”), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director (the “INED”), the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and a member of each of the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”) and the Nomination Committee
on 13 November 2014. From June 1997 to June 2002, Mr. Chu
served at various positions in Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd. (5
BEBRMHBRAR), which is a provider of computing devices,
testing and skilled solutions, and last served as an expert sales
and was primarily responsible for overseeing its sales department
in respect of the computing devices. From May 2002 to August
2004, Mr. Chu served as the investment manager of CDIB Venture
Capital Corp. (FEEREAIERERMBER DA, which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Development Financial Holding
Corporation ( 7 2= 58 3 & B % I A% 19 B PR A 7)) (Stock Code:
2883) listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and was primarily
engaged in enterprise operations, management, and consulting
services. Mr. Chu was primarily responsible for exploring and
assessing of investment plans and post-investment management.
In January 2014, Mr. Chu established W K Innovation Ltd. (& &1l
BIFT RN BRATF), a venture capital firm, and served as the
managing director and acted as its chairman and chief executive
officer, where he is primarily responsible for its strategic planning.
From August 2004 to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general
manager of W K Technology Fund (% &Ml &I 2% &, previously
known as EFEIELERMHABRAT), a venture capital firm.
Mr. Chu was primarily responsible for exploring and assessing
of investment plans and post investment management. He was
the legal representative of Litmax Electronics Inc. ( &% 3¢ & MK
DA AR], Stock code: 4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor
Corporation (I & B i& 13 B PR A &, Stock code: 3592), each of
which is listed on the Taiwan Cretai Securities Market ( & /& & 5 1&

BEESPL).

Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association ( &/ EZR|E R EHERE RS
from May 2008 to May 2010.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Ms. Chen Jun (“Ms. Chen”), aged 53, was appointed as an INED,
the chairlady of the Risk Management Committee and a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee on 13 November 2014. Since
1987, Ms. Chen has been the tutor in accounting and auditing at
the Capital University of Economics and Business ( & #B4&E & 5
KE)in the PRC (“Capital University”) and primarily responsible
for teaching and research work. Since June 1999, Ms. Chen has
been accredited as an assistant professor of the Capital University.
Ms. Chen received her bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in
economics, majoring in accounting, from the Capital University in
July 1985 and December 1988, respectively. Ms. Chen received
her doctorate in management, majoring in corporate management,
from the Renmin University of China ( B A RAKE) in June 2007.
Ms. Chen completed a program of international management
education at the Brennan School of Business of Dominican
University in the United States of America in November 2007.

She was a speaker for various organisations, including the Beijing
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (1t R &:tAitHE)
and the Beijing Lianxin School (1t R Ei {524 ) . She actively
participated in the preparation of The Administrative Method for
Financial Revenue and Expenditure Auditing in Beijing Health
Sector (R MBEESZYHFRZEAEEIE) ) and The
Practice Guideline for Financial Revenue and Expenditure Auditing
in Beijing Health Sector ( {1t R TH &4 R &0 75U BaT iR B4R
).
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Mr. Ng Sui Yin (“Mr. Ng”), aged 48, was appointed as an INED,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee on 13 November 2014. Mr. Ng was previously the
financial controller of Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
6828). He is now the financial controller of Man Yue Technology
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 0894). He has extensive experience in the
areas of audit, finance and treasury management, tax, bankruptcy,
information technology and business development. Mr. Ng has
been admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong since April 2001 and April 2009, respectively. Mr. Ng
was registered as a certified tax advisor of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong in July 2010. He received his honours diploma in
accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as
Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in July 1998.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

+ =

Mr. Fan Fugiang (S&E 3% ) , aged 38, is one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Mr. Fan is primarily responsible
for legal compliance matters and risk control. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Fan held various positions in Heyuan branch
of the Bank of China, a state-owned bank principally engaged
in providing a range of corporate banking, personal banking,
investment banking and other services, from July 1996 to June
2011 and last served as the general manager of Heyuan High-
tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China and vice general manager
of the corporate department of Heyuan branch of Bank of China,
where he was primarily responsible for the grant of the credit
facilities, risks management and international settlement. From
May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to April 2014, respectively,
Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief financial officer of
Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily responsible
for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan received
a professional certificate from the Guangdong International
Finance College (R BB £ #1242 ) located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a graduation
certificate from the Central Party School of a Guangdong Provincial
Committee (A HEHRAE ZE ) located in the PRC, in January
2008, majoring in public management.

Mr. Fan received the “Top Ten Distinguished Employees (+1£
8 T ) Award” for the years 2005 and 2006 and the “Innovative
Employee Award (%c# T{E# ) " by Heyuan branch of Bank of
China for the year 2007.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Mr. Hu Sanmu (# =7 ) , aged 40, is the vice president of sales
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the expansion of
sales network and maintenance of relationship with customers.
Mr. Hu has been a director of Kunshan QT China since June
2014. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held various positions in
VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited (/& 5EE T &Em OFII)
AREA7]), a company principally engaged in manufacturing of
telecommunication products, from July 1998 to November 2002,
where he last served as a mechanical structure engineer and was
primarily responsible for the mechanical design. From November
2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various positions in Tianjin
Amphenol Kae Co., Ltd. (REZEHINEESTFHRRA), a
manufacturer of interconnect products, where he last served as a
sales engineer and was primarily responsible for maintaining the
relationship with existing customers and the expansion of sales
network. From July 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Hu held various
positions in Van Telecom PRC, a company principally engaged
in manufacturing and sales of precise connectors, where he last
served as the sales director and was primarily responsible for sales
management and product planning. Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s
degree in engineering, majoring in mechanical design and
manufacture from the Xi’an University of Science and Technology
(FALEHEARE) | previously known as Xi’an Mining Institute (8%
TEZ2PT) , in July 1998.

Mr. Liu Tongquan (£)%:# ) , aged 38, is the production director
of the Group. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for the process
engineering and production management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu served as a production manager of Kunshan
Giantplus Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (BULZEENXRE
Rifr AR A F), a LCD display manufacturer, from July 2002
to November 2007, where he was primarily responsible for
production management. Mr. Liu received his bachelor’s degree
in engineering, majoring in measurement and control technology
and instrumentation, and his bachelor’s degree in economics from
the Wuhan University (V£ K2 ) in June 2002 and July 2002,
respectively.
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Mr. Cheng, ChiaChu (ZfZX57) , aged 54, is the vice president
of research and development of the Group, responsible for the
research and development and software development. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked as the associate vice
president of research and development of Lite-On Semiconductor
Corporation, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange,
from April 2000 to July 2011, leading the hardware, software,
algorithm, optics and mechanical departments, including to
develop new product lines and set up PM departments and
corporate R&D centre. During his employment, Mr. Cheng
developed products and technologies such as mobile telephone
camera module, motion detection algorithm of optical touch
screen, two-dimensional motion detection algorithm by using
coherent light and linear light sensor and developed its relevant
products. From October 2011 to July 2015, Mr. Cheng worked
as a director of Primax Electronics Ltd., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange, responsible for the development of
new technology and market, including new technology sourcing
such as closed-loop voice coil motor (“VCM”) and optical image
stabilization of camera module, and the initiation of the fingerprint
recognition module product line, process development and market
development. Mr. Cheng has over 15 years of experience in optical
input devices, image processing, algorithm development and
system integration, and has more than 10 years of experience
in research and development, project management, process
development, testing system development and new production
introduction. Mr. Cheng has been granted a total of 23 patents,
and has made applications for another 19 patents pending for
approval.

Mr. Cheng obtained a master’s degree in Electrical Engineering
from Tatung University in Taiwan in July 1992, majoring in
communications and digital signal processing. He is now a
Ph.D. student of National Taiwan University, majoring in Nano-
electronics.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENSHEREBZEFEFS

Mr. Sun Wei (#1&) , aged 37, is the senior purchasing manager
of the Group. Mr. Sun is primarily responsible for selecting
and evaluating the suppliers and overseeing the sourcing and
purchases of raw materials and equipment. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Sun served as the procurement officer of Compal
Electronic Technology (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ({ZE2EF &I (B 1)
BRA

to May 2005, where he was primarily responsible for procurement

&]), a notebook computer manufacturer, from July 2004

of the materials. From July 2005 to June 2008, Mr. Sun served as
the procurement supervisor of Altek (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. (&t &
B (EIL)ARAF), a digital camera manufacturer, where he
was primarily responsible for sourcing and buying the materials for
optical products. From July 2008 to February 2011, he served as
the section manager of the supplier development division of Young
Optics (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. (R ILHZE X EHFRAF]), a projector
manufacturer, where he was primarily responsible for sourcing
and buying the materials for optical products. Mr. Sun received
his master's degree in management, majoring in management
sciences and engineering, from the Harbin Institute of Technology
(REBEIZEARE) in July 2004.

Ms. Le Yanfang (£4#5 ), aged 32, is the human resources
manager of the Group. Ms. Le is primarily responsible for
management of human resources of Kunshan QT China. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Le served as the head of the human
resources department of AVCON Information Technology Co., Ltd.
(ZEF =B HMRM AR AR, a company principally engaged in
the provision of the multi-media communication system solutions,
and was primarily responsible for formulating human resources
policies and human resources affairs from October 2007 to
December 2010. Ms. Le received her graduation certificate from
the Jiujiang Vocational and Technical College ( 17T B 2 & 17 22 55% )
in June 2004, majoring in electronic technology and application.
Ms. Le completed an online programme in human resources
management provided by the Nankai University (E 5 A 2) in
January 2012.
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Directors’ Report
EEERS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were initially listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 2 December 2014
(the “Listing Date”). The net proceeds from the Global Offering
(as defined in the Company’s Prospectus) were approximately
HK$658,000,000 (after deducting relevant listing expenses). As
at 31 December 2015, approximately 65.7% or HK$432,199,000
of the net proceeds was utilised, among which: (i) approximately
HK$97,959,000 was utilised to purchase production and testing
machinery and equipment; (i) approximately HK$112,235,000
was utilised to enhance R&D capabilities; (iii) approximately
HK$101,984,000 was utilised to expand the production base;
(iv) approximately HK$46,715,000 was utilised to repay bank
borrowings; (v) approximately HK$7,611,000 was utilised for
overseas sales and procurement and future expansion to the
overseas markets; (vi) approximately HK$65,695,000 was utilised
for general corporate purposes.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research,
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years are set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual
report.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 95 of
this report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 15 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 9 to 15. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 16 to 34. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the Group Five-year Financial Summary on pages 6 to 8 of this
report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies,
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact

relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance

on the Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Management Discussion and Analysis, the Corporate Governance
Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 9 to 15, pages 16
to 34, pages 71 to 92, and pages 44 to 70 respectively. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the
Year (2014: approximately RMB0.0406 per Share, equivalent to
approximately HK$0.052 per Share).

There were no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entitiement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on 20 May 2016 (the “2016 AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 18 May 2016 to Friday,
20 May 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 17 May 2016 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:

The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20.4% (2014: approximately 26.5%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 48.4% (2014: approximately 46.8%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
27.8% (2014: approximately 24.6%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customer accounted for
approximately 73.7% (2014: approximately 72.1%) of the total
turnover of the Group.
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During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any beneficial interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at 31 December
2015, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves
(including share premium and retained profits) attributable to
the equity holders of the Company available for distribution was
RMB673,747,000 (2014: RMB641,078,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)™
Mr. Yang Peikun
Mr. Wang Jiangiang

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang"A®
Ms. Chen JunNARM
Mr. Ng Sui YinA"M

A member of audit committee of the Company
R member of remuneration committee of the Company
M member of risk management committee of the Company

N member of nomination committee of the Company

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin will retire by
rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election
at the 2016 AGM.

During the Year, no Director resigned from his/her office or refused
to stand for re-election to his/her office due to reasons relating to
the affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 35 to 43 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company for a term of 36 months commenced from the
month in which the Company’s Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange (i.e. December 2014), which term may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other party.

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with our
Company for a term of three years with effect from 2 December
2014, being the date on which the shares of the Company were
initially listed on the Stock Exchange.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2016
AGM has a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no material interests in transaction,
arrangement or contract in relation to the Group’s business,
to which the Company, its holding company, its controlling
shareholder or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
respect of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Interest in the Shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Directors/ issued the issued

Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Position held Shares
Frfs 2

B2 TETH 2#T N BT

ABHE 5/ REME ROBE BR BROBEDHE

(Note 2)

(Htatz)

He Ningning Interest of a controlled 751,391,000 Long position 73.10%
corporation (Note 1)

B2 E Ry rEER 751,391,000 & 73.10%
(K1)

Yang Peikun Beneficial owner 8,899,000 Long position 0.87%

16 15 1e8 ERBEEA 8,899,000  f1& 0.87%

Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 5,000,000 Long position 0.49%
(Note 3)

TR ERBEAA 5,000,000 & 0.49%
(H1:23)
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Notes:

Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board, is the sole beneficial owner of Q Technology Investment
Inc. (“QT Investment”) which owned approximately 73.10% of
the issued shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. He Ningning is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by QT Investment.

The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by
1,027,945,000 issued Shares as at 31 December 2015.

On 30 March 2016, an aggregate of 2,500,000 Shares were
issued to Mr. Wang Jiangiang pursuant to the exercise of
2,500,000 share options granted to him by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, at an exercise price of
RMBO0.40 per share. Since 30 March 2016, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
has been the beneficial owner of an aggregate of 7,500,000
Shares.
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(b) Interest in Underlying Shares

(b) REBERKRMGD ZES

Approximately
percentage of
the underlying
Shares over
the Company’s

following section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” and
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares
divided by 1,027,945,000 issued Shares as at 31 December
2015.

On 30 March 2016, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 2,500,000
share options granted to him by the Company under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, at an exercise price of RMBO0.40
per share. Mr. Wang Jiangiang is interested in the remaining
2,500,000 share options granted to him.
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Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 5,000,000 Long position 0.49%
(Notes 1 and 3)

T EnRBEEA 5,000,000 7@ 0.49%
(HtaF1%3)

Yang Peikun Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long position 0.97%
(Note 1)

15155 ERBEBA 10,000,000 595) 0.97%
(Htat1)
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(c) Interest in Associated Corporation
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(c) RAEBZEEzERS

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of shares in

Name of Director/ Name of associated Capacity/Nature of issued associated
Chief Executive corporation interest shares held corporation
NiEHEEEE

BE FETH iz e &1 2 R®TRHA
ABHE HEZEER LY 1131 B 43 8 B Bk
He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 1 100%
fEE ER®RE EnEAA 1 100%

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of BR EXFIHBEEIIN R_ZTE—AF+ =

the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, and underlying shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

TERREDHKE

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—8H B®AEARQ
RESIAMA TIAL (BRARQRREEK
FETBABIN) RRH @G (82
BERAITETRFABENTE SHH)
A R RN B 5 R HR B 6 5] 553360
BRARNREEANELMAZER A
BT

Approximate
percentage of

total issued
Capacity/Nature of Number of Shares in the
Name of Shareholder Long/short position interest Shares held Company
WEFARRT
BRITRHA
BRERAME BE/ KR 51/ ERER FiERHEE BYFEIL
QT Investment Long position Beneficial owner 751,391,000 73.10%
(Note)
E3®&E iE BESHEBA 751,391,000 73.10%
(Hiit)

Note: Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of QT  Mfif: M EELE G BHEBEE T HIEEBRE LD

Investment, which owned approximately 73.10% of the issued
Shares.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2015.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 16 to 34, there were no other important events affecting
the Group that had occurred after 31 December 2015 and up to
the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of Directors since the date of the 2014 Annual Report
of the Company required to be disclosed in this report are as
follows:
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One of the INEDs, Mr. Ng Sui Yin, previously the financial controller
of Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6828), has left Blue
Sky Power Holdings Limited during the Year and has become the
financial controller of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 0894) during the Year and up to the date of this report.

Saved as disclosed as above, there were no other important
changes in the information of Directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and granted a total
of 59,935,000 share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to the eligible participants with an aim to reward their
contribution to the Group made or possibly made. Details of the
schemes are set out below:

A. Share Option Scheme

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.
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Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new
Shares as the Board may determine:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital as at the date of this report:

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 100,000,000
Shares (representing 10% and approximately 9.65%
of the issued share capital immediately following
completion of the Global Offering (as defined in
the Prospectus) and as at the date of this report,
respectively).
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme:

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to:

()  the issue of a circular by the Company containing
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers
of and terms of the options to be granted (and
options previously granted to such Eligible
Participant), the information as required under
Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time with such Eligible
Participant and his/her close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the
Eligible Participant is a connected person(as defined
in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.

The period within which the options must be exercised
under Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the
date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that
date subject to the provisions for early termination set
out in the Share Option Scheme.
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The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 13 November 2014.
During the Year, no options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.
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B. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was a share incentive
scheme established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) had made to the Group.
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme provided the Pre-
IPO Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving
the following purposes:

()  motivate the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships
with the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Board might, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board might determine to the full-time, key
employees of the Group who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, had contributed to the Company and/or any of
the subsidiaries (the “Pre-IPO Eligible Participants”).
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The number of Shares in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
59,935,000 Shares (representing approximately 5.99%
and approximately 5.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company immediately following completion of the
Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus) as at the
date of this report). These options were granted on 13
November 2014 to subscribe for 59,935,000 Shares. No
further options will be offered or granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, as the rights to do so have
been terminated.

The period within which the options must be exercised
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

()  up to 50% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017;

(i)  up to 75% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2017; and
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(i) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and ending on 31
December 2017.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable during the years when such
option becomes vested.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be a price of RMBO0.4 per Share.

Except for the above, the principal terms of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, which were confirmed
and approved by resolutions in writing of all of the
Shareholders passed on 13 November 2014, were
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

N T Lk,
50 B IR R 9 2 B ) 4

8-
Number of underlying Shares comprising share options
BRESRZABROHE
Outstanding Lapsed/
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited As at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2015 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2015
i
—E-1f i
-B-8 —E-1%
HRTEN HER =
£ REAH Eixd: BRE  HBEARR BENTE HEREE AR/ EK =t+-H
Directors
Bz
Wang Jiangiang 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 10,000,000 - (5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
31 December 2017
Ti% “E-W¥+-A+=zR —E-R5-A-B% 10,000,000 - 5,000,000y - - 5,000,000
ZR—tE+ZA=1-H
Yang Peikun 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 20,000,000 - (10,000,000)% 1 - - 10,000,000
31 December 2017
s —E-RmEt+-A+t=A =—Z-Af-F-HE 20,000,000 - (10,000,000)7 - - 10,000,000
—Z—+F+-A=t-H
30,000,000 - (15,000,000) - - 15,000,000
Employees (in total) 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 26,700,000 - (12,945,000 " - (1,010,000) 12,745,000
31 December 2017
8 (i) “F-NE+-A+=A -E-A%-F-HE 26,700,000 = (12,945,000)71 S (1,010,0000 12,745,000
—E—+E+-A=t-A
Total 56,700,000 - (27,945,000) - (1,010,000 27,745,000
@i 56,700,000 - (27,945,000) - (1,010,000 27,745,000
Notes: Hiat -

1) The weighted average closing price immediately before the
dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$2.65

per Share.

2)  On 30 March 2016, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 2,500,000
share options, and a total of 6,326,000 share options were
exercised by the employees on the same date. The weighted
average closing price immediately before the date on which the

share options were exercised was HK$1.30 per Share.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

On 1 February 2016 (“Date of Board Resolution”), the board of
Directors convened a meeting and passed various resolutions
(“Repurchase Resolutions”) in relation to, amongst other matters,
the repurchase of up to 5,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(“Relevant Shares”) pursuant to a buy-back mandate granted by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
of the Company dated 22 May 2015 (2015 AGM”). The Relevant
Shares represented approximately 0.494% of the aggregate
number of the issued shares of the Company as at the date
of the 2015 AGM and approximately 0.486% of the aggregate
number of the issued shares of the Company as at the Date of
Board Resolution. As at the date of this report, the Company had
not repurchased any of its shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Resolutions. The proposed repurchase of the Relevant Shares
pursuant to the Repurchase Resolutions may or may not proceed.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being
the chairman, Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in this report
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the related party transactions
constitutes a continuing connected transaction or connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:

Master Purchase Agreement in respect of the purchase
of precise connectors from Van Telecom Limited (“Van
Telecom PRC”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement (the “Master Purchase Agreement”) with
Van Telecom PRC, pursuant to which Van Telecom PRC agreed
to supply the precise connectors to the Group for a term from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

The price for the precise connectors to be supplied by Van
Telecom PRC under the Master Purchase Agreement will be
determined by reference to the price at which comparable types
of precise connectors that are sold by independent suppliers to
the Group under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course
of its business and such price shall be no less favourable to the
Group than is available from independent suppliers. In considering
whether to purchase from Van Telecom PRC, the Group will seek
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering
the same or comparable products. The Group will purchase the
precise connectors from Van Telecom PRC if the price and quality
of the products offered are comparable to or more favourable to
the Group than those offered by independent third parties for the
same or comparable products.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly owned by CK Telecom Inc. (“CK
Telecom”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. He Ningning,
an executive Director, the chairman and one of the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. As
such, Van Telecom PRC is a connected person of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the Year, the total transaction amount under the Master
Purchase Agreement was nil and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB300,000.
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Master Electronic Purchase Agreement in respect of
the purchase of flexible printed circuit board (“FPC”)
from C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd. (formerly known
as C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Co., Ltd) (“C-Flex
Electronic”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement (the “Master Electronic Purchase Agreement”)
with C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which C-Flex Electronic agreed
to supply the FPCs to the Group for a term from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016.

The price for the FPCs to be supplied by C-Flex Electronic under
the Master Electronic Purchase Agreement will be determined
by reference to the price at which comparable types of FPCs
that are sold by independent suppliers to the Group under
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of its business
and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group than is
available from independent suppliers. In considering whether to
purchase from C-Flex Electronic, the Group will seek quotations
from at least two independent third parties offering the same or
comparable products. The Group will purchase the FPCs from
C-Flex Electronic if the price and quality of the products offered are

comparable products.

C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi Venture
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Handi”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom Equipment Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen CK”) which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr.
He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman and one of
the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, and 10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive
Director and the chief financial officer. As such, C-Flex Electronic is
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the Year, the total transaction amount under the Master

Electronic Purchase Agreement was approximately RMB1,701,000
and the annual cap amount for the Year was RMB4,500,000.
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Master Supply Agreement and Supplemental Master
Supply Agreement in respect of the supply of camera
modules to CK Telecom Limited (“Heyuan CK?”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a master
supply agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) with Heyuan
CK, pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply the camera
modules to Heyuan CK for the production of its products for
a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 29
December 2014, the Company and Heyuan CK entered into a
supplemental master supply agreement (the “Supplemental Master
Supply Agreement”) to revise the annual caps under the Master
Supply Agreement.

The price for the camera modules to be supplied by the Group
under the Master Supply Agreement will be determined by
reference to the raw material costs and production costs to be
incurred by the Group and the profit margin, which is expected
to be comparable with the level of profits derived from the
Group’s sales to independent customers, subject to adjustments
arising from the expected quantity, quality, delivery schedule,
specifications and market competition.

Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman
and one of the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the Year, the total transaction amount under the Master Supply
Agreement and Supplemental Master Supply Agreement was
approximately RMB69,158,000 and the revised annual cap amount
for the Year was RMB70,500,000.
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The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions have been:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

2. entered into on normal commercial or better terms; and

3. entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders’ as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor of the
Company has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the relevant independent
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this report.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

ARRRBUIFATEFCDERNER
ARAH L FERERS

() BRAKENHEEER:

(i) XHERITERE QA KB ERKK

BEGR: R

(i) MREABHARARENEEN =R
RNFERAEIERRZ R

AABBUZEMEEZEERE S
FHEN A g B E BB B R %R
30005% [ 25 4% = 28 B 18 13 BF 7% & % LASh
ZEETIE] U2 REBHAETI090
[EAREBE LRI EBER SN
ZEEN RG] RAKEENFEBRERS
EHRE - AR BIZEEHERE L
MR E14A6ENBEELHEEHE
BASERAEAMEREREBRERS
MZBERRERNEBEREE R M-
ARABEHBIYZEMHAGIEAZERF

B4t X BT ©

%@

BrRBEHE

REARARESERARXFA=HEN
AR BERXEEARARBARLD
MBREERREEFTR ZELEERE-

BAZAREFERE

REARAARLCRRBETZENK
Mé%%ﬂ*mﬁigiﬁﬁ%%ﬁz
BZRMHRERATAS A2 A

ERFLETRABENRHZ ARFTR

io



DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.

The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.
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= ‘—PR@ESS1ON‘K{'TI'AX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult a
professional adviser.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has
resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
to re-appoint Messrs. KPMG as the independent auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
He Ningning

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting
and enhancing Shareholders’ value through good corporate
governance.

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted and complied with all applicable code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the
Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

EEREBHS

ARBBNRBITEHARRFRER ([
RINEBZEFE BBRARENER
EIRRE LI INAR(EE -

AR EERABEAEEEERREBLA
PEEREFSERTFOCEERTLEIIE
BEEZ EUNERAERMEE M-

+E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ*%ﬁﬁé?ﬂﬂ%
AP B A ST RIERSC -

ESETRESXS

RABE B AR B 8%+ P 71 ey

EHBETAESETELRRHINIZESF

A (MRESFA D EREESHETESRR

%MﬁﬁT% A NTMEZEHA
EHE 2RETHERFEEREAFE
%%%+ AIFTHR B 2 2Rl o

E#BE (SE)ERAA
2015554} Al



Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group. The Board sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the requisite
financial and human resources support are in place for the Group
to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the Board
include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s business
plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial (including
major capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing,
monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and
all other functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Peikun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Ms. Chen Jun
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
an executive Director, is the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, representing
half of the Board members, which has exceeded the requirement
of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must represent at
least one-third of the Board members, and met the requirement
that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation, the
Company considers that all the INEDs are independent and have
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

For the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr.
Wang Jiangiang, Mr. Yang Peikun, Ms. Chen Jun, Mr. Ng Sui Yin
and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang) attended the following training seminars:

e A training seminar arranged by Sidley Austin, the Company’s
Hong Kong legal adviser for the Year, on the directors’ duties
and the Stock Exchange’s Consultation Conclusions on
Review of Listing Rules on Disclosure of Financial Information
and Proposed Minor/Housekeeping Amendments; and

e A training seminar arranged by Somerley Capital Limited,
the Company’s Compliance Advisor, on Chapter 14 “Equity
Securities Notifiable Transactions”, Chapter 14A “Equity
Securities — Connected Transactions”, and Appendix 10
“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” of the Listing Rules.

The Company has from time to time provided briefings to all
Directors to develop and refresh their duties and responsibilities.
All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expense and they have been requested
to provide the Company with their training records.
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Corporate Governance Report

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held four meetings in total (i.e. on 27
March 2015, 22 May 2015, 17 August 2015 and 11 November
2015 respectively) at approximately quarterly intervals with notice
given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance. Before each
Board meeting, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers
have been sent to all Directors at least three days before the
intended date of the Board meeting. The joint company secretaries
of the Company (the “Joint Company Secretaries”) are responsible
for keeping all Board meeting’s minutes. Draft and final versions
of the minutes have been circulated to the Directors for comments
and record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting during the Year is as follows:
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman, is
responsible for the management of the Board while Mr. Yang
Peikun, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the
Group’s business and overall operations. There is a clear division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are

posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussion with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

e monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

e  discussing the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system;
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e considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

e ensuring co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

e  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter; and

e  considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings in
total (i.e. on 27 March 2015 and 27 August 2015) (the “Audit
Committee Meetings”) respectively and reviewed the audited
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the unaudited consolidated results for the six months ended 30
June 2015 of the Company, respectively, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group, the Company’s
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code and
disclosure thereof in the relevant annual and interim reports, the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the Company’s external
auditor at the 2015 AGM.
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The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee Meetings
during the Year is as follows:

FEREGHS

BEEERNAEFELHREERRE SRR
R

No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

R B (),
Name of Directors EENE BRERE
Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) BEE(EE) 2/2
Ms. Chen Jun BREB 22 + 2/2
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MRFEERE 2/2
Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by the INEDs Mit: FIEESHUHRGTEEZZESS
themselves, not by an alternate. HOIERREBEALE-
The Audit Committee held one meeting on 24 March 2016 and BERZEEBENR _T—A~AF=-A=-+@
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results forthe HZR{T— A @@ U EEARAAFE
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by £& BEZEHEEE R EBELAKEMK
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions M iR RED - RAREFREST

of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the Company’s external
auditor at the 2016 AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Ms. Chen Jun. Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

e reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

e reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
on 27 March 2015, and reviewed and recommended to the Board
for consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the
Directors and senior management, determined the policy for the
remuneration of executive Directors, assessed performance of
executive Directors and approved the terms of executive Directors’
service contracts.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director’'s workload
and required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual
contributions to the Group’s results and development as well
as individual’s potential were considered when determining the

remuneration packages of Executive Directors.

The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee
meeting during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

HERE (FaE)
Name of Directors BEEHSE SERY
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) MRERE (EE) 11
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBRAE 1/1
Ms. Chen Jun PREFZZ = 11
Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by the Bt FrEEEYRsERETNEEes
relevant Directors themselves, not by an alternate. HOIERREALE-
The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on 24 FMEESe MR _E—R"F=-A=1TK@
March 2016, and reviewed and recommended to the Board for El BT A TEERNEETSHE
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors EEZE T THEENSREEAE
and senior management. i B 7 Z EIHo
Nomination Committee REZEE
The Nomination Committee has been established with written 1ERZE@REEZHBESZENLFTAE
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises & TRl IRZLEEERIEM BB IE

two INEDs, namely Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and an
executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He Ningning is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

include, but are not limited to:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

assessing the independence of the INEDs;

reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing the
measurable objectives for implementing such Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional
experience of the Board, and the progress on achieving the
objectives; and making disclosure of its progress and its
review results in the annual report annually; and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief
executives.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting on

27 March 2015, and among other things, reviewed the structure,

size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence

of the INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration

the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the

2015 AGM as well as determined the policy for the nomination of

Directors.
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The attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee
meetings during the Year is as follows:

EEREBHS

BEERNAFELHFREZESEARC
gy

No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

R B (M),
Name of Directors ESHE BRRHE
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) ZEELAE (£/F) 11
Ms. Chen Jun FRASZZ 1 11
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TMREFTE 11

Note: The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by the

relevant Directors themselves, not by an alternate.

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 24 March
2016, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
the INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration
the re-appointment of the retiring Directors, namely Mr. Wang
Jiangiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin as Directors at the 2016 AGM as well
as reviewed the Board’s Diversity Policy.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference. The Risk Management Committee
comprises three members, namely Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Ng Sui
Yin, both INEDs and Mr. Fan Fugiang, a Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Chen Jun is the chairlady of the Risk
Management Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

° reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;

e reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;
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e reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB10 million as requested
from time to time (amended to reviewing the risks associated
with, and approving, the purchase of wealth management
products with single transaction amount exceeding RMB50
million as requested from time to time, pursuant to the
amendments made to the funds management policy at the
Risk Management Committee meeting held on 24 March
2016);

° reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

e  considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held four
meetings in total (i.e. on 27 March 2015, 22 May 2015, 27 August
2015 and 11 November 2015). At the above meetings, the Risk
Management Committee reviewed and assessed the Group’s
wealth management product investment in terms of whether such
investment complies with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment.

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee meetings
during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note 1)/
No. of Meetings

HE RS (HEE1)
Name of members REH A =k PN
Ms. Chen Jun (Chairladly) Al (/%) 4/4
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBRAE 4/4
Mr. Fan Fugiang (Note 2) SBERIE (KiF2) 4/4

Note 1:  The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by the
relevant Directors themselves, not by an alternate.

Note 2: M. Fan Fugiang is a Joint Company Secretary of the Company.
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The Risk Management Committee also held one meeting on 24
March 2016, and reviewed and assessed the Group’s wealth
management product investment in terms of whether such
investment complies with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment. The Risk Management Committee also reviewed and
amended the funds management policy of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 36 months commenced
from December 2014 (ie. the month in which the shares of the
Company were listed on the Stock Exchange).

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from 2 December
2014, being the date on which the shares of the Company were
initially listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed aforesaid, none of the Directors has a service
contract/letters of appointment with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries other than contracts/letters of appointment expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement by
rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director will be subject
to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A retiring
Director will be eligible for re-election and will continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. The Directors
to retire by rotation will include (so far as necessary to ascertain
the number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who
wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been the longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot.

Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin will retire by rotation at the

2016 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2016 AGM.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:

Remuneration band (in RMB) FMAR (ARH)

EEREBHS

EENGREEASHH

AEREFZHMFBINHENEHIMB
R LA o

BECETREBASKZTARE &
MEBEAB (BEFHRIN HM (RERIZ
MAINERAEFEFERS (EERD
MEBBZBEFIBT] A)INHWT :

Number of individuals

AT EE

Nil to 1,000,000 Z %1,000,0007T
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG for the services in
respect of the Year is set out below:

BB

AEE EFEHEMEEMERARN
B 2 Bz BAD -

RAFERE 2RI E R, AR BAD
ESHEMEBAZHFMIET T

Fee paid/payable

B ENEA

(RMB'000)

Services [i%:3 AR®T T

Audit Services - audit fee for 2015 RBRG - —_E-—LFEZHER 1,800
Non-audit Services — transfer pricing service  JE#Z R — B 1L Lk HE#E

for Kunshan QT China (Note) EERE (MisE) 130

Total #Et 1,930

Note: Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, for the
year ended 31 December 2014, the total connected transaction
amount of purchasing of raw materials and export sales of
Kunshan QT China via Kunshan QT Hong Kong exceeded
RMB200,000,000, which shall be filed to the relevant PRC taxation
authorities with an annual report on connected transaction
contemporaneous documentation. Kunshan QT China had
engaged KPMG to assist with the drafting of the said report.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year
at the 2016 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. Highlights of the Group’s internal control system
include the following:

e Code of Conduct — The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.

° Management of related party transactions — The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control by strictly monitoring
and managing its related party transactions and only enter
into transactions with related parties that are carried out in
the ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

° Internal Audit — The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations — The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the internal control
measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has appointed Mr. Fan Fugiang (“Mr. Fan”) as one of
the Joint Company Secretaries since 11 June 2014. Mr. Fan joined
the Group in July 2011 with sound understanding of the operations
of the Board and the Group. He was closely involved in the
preparation of the Listing. During the Year, Mr. Fan has received no
less than 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

To uphold good corporate governance of the Company and
compliance with the Listing Rules and other relevant laws and
regulations, the Company has also appointed Mr. Kwok Siu Man
(“Mr. Kwok”), who meets the requirements under Note 1 to Rule
3.28 of the Listing Rules, as the other Joint Company Secretary to
work closely with and provide assistance to Mr. Fan in discharge
of the latter's duties and responsibilities as a Joint Company
Secretary. Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to assume such office and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary
person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting
in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Fan,
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As Mr. Kwok was first appointed as the company secretary of
a Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in
1991 and has been acting in such capacity for a number of other
reputable companies listed on the Stock Exchange at substantial
times, he is not required to have at least 15 hours of relevant
continuous professional development training in the Year under
the Listing Rules and will only be required to comply with the Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the financial year commencing on 1
January 2017. However, despite the above exemption, Mr. Kwok
had delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant seminars in the
Year.

Mr. Kwok resigned as Joint Company Secretary and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 8 April 2016. Ms.
Hung Ching Yuen (“Ms. Hung”) was appointed as Joint Company
Secretary and authorised representative of the Company on 8 April
2016.

Ms. Hung is an external service provider to the Company and a
solicitor practicing in Hong Kong. She has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training as required by the Listing
Rules. The primary contact person between the Company and Ms.
Hung is Mr. Fan.

The company secretaries report to the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and services of the Joint Company Secretaries. The
appointment and removal of the Joint Company Secretaries are
subject to Board’s approval.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution
may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
‘EGM”) in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to
convene an EGM” set out below.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Joint Company
Secretaries, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 1715, 17/F, Topsalil
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong with
effect from 8 April 2016) for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretaries.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the
Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the Joint Company
Secretaries will ask the Board to convene an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the
Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as
not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised
of the outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM
nor include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong, at Room 1715, 17/F, Topsail Plaza, 11
On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong (with effect
from 8 April 2016) by post or by email to Ms. Hung Ching Yuen
at crystalhung@toclegal.com.hk or Mr. Fan Fugiang at richard.
fan@ck-telecom.com, for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretaries.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Joint Company Secretaries will
forward the communications relating to:

1. matters within the Board’s purview to the executive Directors;

2.  matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and consumer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders with equal and
timely access to information about the Company in order to enable
the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner
and to allow them to engage actively with the Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other general meetings
that may be convened as well as all the disclosures submitted to
the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year. The M&A is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 196,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement
Bl E

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—AF+_A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A REFI/R)

2015 2014
—E-—EHF —ZE-EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR T AREFT
Revenue W 2 2,202,395 2,161,084
Cost of sales $HE R A (1,961,824) (1,808,505)
Gross profit E A 240,571 352,579
Other revenue b g 5 3 23,622 35,539
Other net loss H ) FE518 3 (31,476) (7,077)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (6,237) (5,647)
Administrative and other operating 1T & £ fth & 4 5 52
expenses (27,505) (89,723)
Research and development 25 A 2
expenses (74,326) (73,423)
Profit from operations LEER 124,649 262,248
Finance costs B & Bl AR 4(a) (9,948) (23,171)
Profit before taxation R %4 Al % F 4 114,701 239,077
Income tax FriS %t 5 (12,702) (43,571)
Profit for the year F =R 101,999 195,506
Earnings per share BR2F RMB Cents RMB Cents
AR#% S ARES
Basic AR 9 10.1 31.8
Diluted e 9 9.8 29.6

F102ZE 19678 HY BE M B 5248 Ak 5% & B 7%
WMEH—H - BEEMNARARER
BAZERNRHEWLRE BN
FE25(b) °

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 196 form part of
these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year
are set out in Note 25(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SHEBNEE

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—Z—AF+—_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#%I7R)

2015 2014
—Z-HfF —T—MF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARE T AREFIT
Profit for the year FRER 101,999 195,506
Other comprehensive income FRAEMAZEBA
for the year (after tax and (BRBREHIE
reclassification adjustments): WEE)
ltems that may be reclassified B esEsoEzsE
subsequently to profit or loss: =HIEE ¢
- Exchange differences on — M E B
translation of the financial LASNGT B 2 7]
statements of subsidiaries R E 0]
outside the Mainland China N =5 23,827 (957)
— Available-for-sale financial — Al E R
assets: net movement in the BE: A FE
fair value reserve R FHE (2,871) (2,292)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEEA
for the year 8 20,956 (8,249)
Total comprehensive income FREEKBALLE
for the year 122,955 192,257

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 196 form part of these 551022196 & A K& B B 51 18 7k 5% 5 B 75
e — & o

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BHEFIRR R

as at 31 December 2015 R=_ZE—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A REFI/R)

2015 2014
—E-5fF —ZE—OF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARE T AREESTE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LESN VN 10 420,670 335,787
Lease prepayments METEN A 12 17,464 17,880
Intangible assets B EE 13 1,476 134
Deferred tax assets REFRIBE E 24(b) 4,922 5,146
Prepayment for acquisition of WS - B=
property, plant and equipment RAER TR FRIB 9,398 1,007
453,930 359,954
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 14 209,262 141,597
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EoAth e Ug 5R I8 15 888,786 872,582
Other financial assets Hih o p & E 16 600 125,377
Current tax assets BNEATL I8 & 2= 24(a) 10,349 -
Pledged bank deposits 2R EITFER 17 145,519 249,919
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 18(a) 282,215 553,104
1,536,731 1,942,579
Current liabilities =R
Bank borrowings SRIT & 3K 19 142,164 712,679
Trade and other payables B 5 &k H A FE R 50R 20 622,053 444,823
Current tax payable JE A~F BN HA B 18 24(a) 2,095 11,968
766,312 1,169,470
Net current assets REEEFE 770,419 773,109
Total assets less current liabilities #BEERREEE 1,224,349 1,133,063

ESRBE (£@E)ERLQF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BHEIFER R R

as at 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#%I7R)

2015 2014
—ZE-hF —E—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARE T AREF T
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income EIEU A 21 4,752 975
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE 24(b) 2,040 7,800
6,792 8,775
NET ASSETS BEERE 1,217,557 1,124,288
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#E
Capital N 25 8,132 7,908
Reserves e 25 1,209,425 1,116,380
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,217,557 1,124,288

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 KEEER T — NF=A -+ THHt
March 2016. R IR AE T -

He Ningning {r] 8 B8

Directors EE
Wang Jiangiang FRa

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 196 form part of these 5102196 B K B [t M 5T X 2 Z 81 7%
financial statements. W H)—Fm e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BHIRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—Z—AF+—_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR3))

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B i AR®B TR ARETTT
Operating activities KReETE
Cash generated from operations REFGES 18(b) 361,952 342,916
Income tax paid ERFTEE (87,953) (39,207)
Net cash generated from operating K& EE ISR EFE
activities 323,999 303,709
Investing activities REFE
Payment for the purchase of other B E H MR &E MK
financial assets (168,540) (956,110)
Payment for the purchase of BEWE BE&
property, plant and equipment BLEINEN (137,145) (158,348)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  WER
plant and equipment RAEPTIS FRIA 2,387 -
Proceeds from disposal of other HEEMmEHMEE
financial assets Fr 15 k18 295,281 1,270,516
Payment for the purchase of BEEFEEMNK
intangible assets (1,587) (141)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank & & #4E 1717 X
deposits A () 800 (800)
Interest received 2R B 12,871 2,652
Proceeds from disposal of interest in & — ZK B & A BlHE xR
an associate B AT 15 ;IR - 81,439
Payment for placement of time TAGIREIEA A B A
deposits with original maturity over = 1{E A 8 FEHFR 2
three months B (66,137) -
Proceeds from maturity of time HHREI B BB =184
deposits with original maturity over 9 5E B 17 X 2| HA
three months FT1S 508 66,137 -
Net cash generated from investing REFE FIEHE S FE
activities 4,067 239,208

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
AHIRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —E—AF+_A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR #31))
2015 2014
—E-IfF —T—MF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR TR ARETFT
Financing activities REEE
Gross proceeds from initial public BRAREBEEMSE
offering IR R - 550,508
Proceeds from share issued under 1R & B A% 4 51 &3 17
share option scheme AR 3 BT 13 5B 11,178 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERPTS A 312,379 1,417,946
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (966,180) (1,450,809)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank =R 1717
deposits A () 87,440 (223,719)
Repayment of advances to related  [RIEEEE 5 EEZ K
parties - 242,195
Advances to related party w) [ Bk 75 A 3K - (39,318)
Proceeds from new advances from 2k & B8 B 7 3718 24 3K K9
related parties F{S 3k 18 - 333,041
Repayment of advances from related 1&3& 3 & Ra B 77 ) 2 38
parties - (951,778)
Interest paid ERFLE (13,862) (10,808)
Payment for listing expenses ST EWmAX (6,953) (23,390)
Capital injection from controlling ERRREE
shareholder - 123,294
Dividend paid ENRE (41,699) -
Net cash used in financing RMEEBMARS R
activities (617,697) (32,838)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReREEEEY
and cash equivalents GR ),/ #EnEEE (289,631) 510,079
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HWERELEK
at 1 January REZEEY 553,104 42,145
Effect of foreign rate changes ExSFHNLE 18,742 880
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—HA=+—H®W
at 31 December BHeRBREEEY 18(a) 282,215 553,104

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 196 form part of these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 R 2R Bfit 53

31 December 2015 _E—HF+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information on new and
revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). RMB is the functional currency for the
Company’s subsidiary established in the Mainland
China. The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries outside the Mainland China is US dollars.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2015 ==

Eﬁ%iﬁ%‘%lﬁﬁi

i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSBH1E8EIN ' LAARBIIIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

—  Derivative financial instruments (Note 1(g))

—  Other financial assets (Note 1(g))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 30.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Eﬁ%iﬁ%%liﬁ%}

31 December 2015 —F
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

T P e e |

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group:

e Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

e Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

e Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

These amendments and new interpretation do not have
an impact on these financial statements. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(e)

(f)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(k(ii))).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note

1 (k) i)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(Note 1(v)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B E AN AAREHIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 R 2R Bfit 53

31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 20 years after the
date of completion.

° Plant and machinery 10 years
o Motor vehicles 5 years
e  Office and other equipment 3 - 5 years

The residual value rates of each class of fixed assets are

as follows:

Residual value rates (%)
Buildings 10%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Office and other equipment 10%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are initially stated at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. At the end
of each reporting period, the fair value is re-measured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. Interest income from
these financial assets is recognised using the effective
interest method in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 1(t)(ii). When these financial
assets are derecognised or impaired (Note 1(k)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of acquiring land
use rights paid to the PRC’s governmental authorities.
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 1(k)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights which are
50 years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (Note

1K) i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. Computer software
with finite useful lives is amortised from the date they are
available for the use for 5 years.

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 R 2R Bfit 53

31 December 2015 _E—HF+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

0)

(k)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

() Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets, and
current and non-current receivables.

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost and available-for-sale
financial assets are reviewed annually to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ e B 5

31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ex B A188HIN - AAREFIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

U

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets, and
current and non-current receivables. (continued)

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of available-for-sale financial asset below
its cost.

[f any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For current receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 R 2R Bfit 53

31 December 2015 —_E—HRF+_-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

U

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets, and
current and non-current receivables. (continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and bills
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and bills receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fx B AN AAREHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;
— lease prepayments; and

— investments in subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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31 December 2015 _E—HF+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(B =AHEAN UARKEIR)

TESTHBE (&)

(k) BEERE &)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSBH1E8EIN ' LAARBIIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(k)(i)) except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(K)(i)).
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31 December 2015 _E—HF+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

(o))

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans made from
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits

U

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.
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31 December 2015 _E—HF+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

1

(r) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that

they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant

amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ex B A188HIN - AAREFIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(r) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:
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— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, =

the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,

or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(B =AHEAN UARKESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered

and when the customer has accepted the related

risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes

value added tax (“VAT”) or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

(iij) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement

of financial position initially when there is reasonable

assurance that they will be received and that the

Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them. Grants that compensate the Group for

expenses incurred are recognised as income in

profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same

year in which the expenses are incurred. Grants

that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset

are recognised by setting up the grant as deferred

income that is recognised in profit or loss on a

systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Unconditional discretionary government grants from

the government authorities are recognised in the

profit or loss as other revenue when the amount is

received.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Mainland China, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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31 December 2015 —F
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

T P e e |

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Borrowing costs

(w)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of an asset

which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

)

(ii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSBH 158N LAAREBHIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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31 December 2015 —F
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

T P e m |

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

2 Revenue and segmental reporting

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing

and sales of camera modules for mobile phones and other

electronic appliances. Revenue represents the sales value of

goods sold, excludes Value Added Tax and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

Revenue and segmental reporting 2 WERDEBHE (&
(continued)
The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined AEBZRWEBUES DHKR IR
by the locations of operations of the contracting parties. BRI TEEMBETE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue g
PRC (including Hong Kong) HE(BEEE) 2,163,600 2,102,627
Overseas NEEIN 38,795 58,457
2,202,395 2,161,084
The Group had three (2014: four) customers with whom Hz_Z2—ARA&F+_-_A=+—8H
transactions had exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue EFEE - AEEE=F(ZF—WO
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The amount of FNE)EFHNRXZEBE KD
sales to these customers amounted to approximately M10% - HZEZ=—_Z—HF+ = A
RMB1,255,948,000 (2014: RMB1,385,151,000) for the year =+—HLFE RZEEFPHNEE
ended 31 December 2015. Details of concentrations of credit A B AN R4 255,948,000t (=
risk arising from these customers are set out in Note 26(a). T — O F: A R®1,385,151,000
) RERFELENEERRET
B FF B E VI R I 5E26(a) ©
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, certain HE_Z—AFE_T—DNF+=
amounts of revenue are related to sales made to related A=+—HBLEFE BTUR=EEHE
parties (see Note 28). TEBRBEEFENNEE (R

3¥28) °

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEBEAPN UAREIIR)

3 Other revenue and other net loss 3 HiukaszEEMFEER
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREF T
Other revenue H i =
Government grants (Note) AT REBY (M) 5,832 3,031
Interest income B U A 11,311 5,236
Investment income & WA 4,741 26,405
Others H At 1,738 867
23,622 35,539
2015 2014
—EB-RF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBEFIT
Other net loss HihREE
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B5 18 5E (30,878) (7,200)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,  HE¥E  HE MR ED
plant and equipment (E518) Wz (1,098) 123
Net gain on foreign currency forward 4N i Hf & 49 A9 U e 5 58
contracts 600 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets & &2 & E K E5 18 (100) -
(31,476) (7,077)

Note: The amounts included RMB4,500,000 (2014: RMB1,000,000)

cash subsidies received from local government for the

Wit ZELBEBERARRKINES L
MR BAF KBRS ERAR
#4,500,0007C (Z B —ME: AR
1,000,0007T) °

Company’s successful listing in Hong Kong.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
P2{5] Annual Report 2015
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BAE AN AAREHIR)

4 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR B A g A

BB AT s MR HER 7 (B A) THIE
TRIRER:

(@) Finance costs
Interest expenses

(b) Staff costs

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
(Note 22)

Salaries, wages and
other benefits

Equity settled share-based
payment expenses (Note 23)

(c) Otheritems
Amortisation
— lease prepayments (Note 12)

— intangible assets (Note 13)

Depreciation (Note 10)

Auditors’ remuneration

Operating lease charges in
respect of properties

Research and development costs
(Note (i)

Impairment loss recognised on
trade receivables

Cost of inventories (Note (i)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

5= 9028
FEF X

BIMAE
REEFBRKE 2
xR
(Hiitez)
e IE8K
H fth 43 FI
NESEENRNG

NRFEZ (AiE23)

HER
—-HEBEMNHE
(Htat12)
— B EE
(H15#13)
e (HWit10)
1% 56 5 B
EREMENKE
HEBR

BT RA (Ha2())

B 5 EYGIRE R

AR R

TFERA (K )

(i) Research and development costs include staff costs of

employees in the design, research and development department
of RMB26,773,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: RMB22,269,000), which are included in the staff costs as

disclosed in Note 4(b).

2015 2014
—E-RfF —Z=—UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEF T
9,948 23,171
5,481 3,853
144,733 111,893
835 3,284
151,049 119,030
416 416

145 11
41,888 30,899
1,896 1,230
1,001 397
74,326 73,423

1 138
2,001,968 1,818,519

HiE

() HEXABEBEE-_Z-—HF1+=A
=+ —RIEFER  HEAFIREENE
TRAAR26,773,000 (=T — M
F: AR #22,269,0007T) ' &t A M &%
AD)REEH B TRAS ©

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F iR}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

4 BR¥AIERN ()

Hat: (&)

4 Profit before taxation (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)  (continued) 0 (&)
BZEXNNERE—BEENZTE R
HEHE FERERES THERAL
TERBEAEmE Bt - kAR
BRA—BREESHEBERAMAL -

The criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development state of the
project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB155,762,000 (2014: iy H#E-_T—RAF+_A=+—HILHF
RMB118,567,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 B FEKRABIEARE155,762,00070
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses, —T—HF: ARM118,567,0007T) *

ARIEETHA ERBHASER

ZESBENMTASHAIFASZE EXEE

BERARM 40 EBEN S HASFE -

B RERPHFE

which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 4(b) for each of these
types of expenses.

5 Income tax in the consolidated income 5
statement

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents:

(a) AHFRERTFHIFEHIE:

2015 2014
ZE-AfF —Z—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETF T
Current tax B EA i 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR ERSR 11,971 35,809
PRC dividend withholding tax PR S TR 5,760 -
17,731 35,809
Deferred tax PR FETT IR
Origination and reversal of TR EENESE
temporary differences R
(Note 24(b)) (Hiit24(b)) (5,029) 7,762
12,702 43,571

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
P23 Annual Report 2015
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Income tax in the consolidated income

statement (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

31 December 2015 —
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([@%ﬁﬁ AN AARETIR)

SO RPHFFTES

5

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before
taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of PRC preferential
tax treatments (iii)

Tax effect of bonus deduction
allowance of research and
development costs

Effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of unused tax loss not
recognised

PRC dividend withholding tax (iv)

Actual tax expense

Notes:

B A5 A g A

BRB A A A B E PR

%E AR R R

EERERAOREGE

FEEBEHBGHFEN
150 75 =2 22 (iii)

B 2% R AN ) 52 8 H1UR
BENTBTE

AR HE S 2

REERARE BB IAE B

BBERE
BB FBHIB (V)

BB RS

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman

Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is

not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and

BVI.

i

(&)
(b) REABRAENBEAZES
R R A E BR
2015 2014
—E-—RE — P F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARKET T
114,701 239,077
29,946 63,850
(9,275) (23,189)
(8,389) (8,264)
249 3,370
171
- 7,800
12,702 43,571

opz

() RERSEENRABEZAES ([E
BRARE])WRAFOER  RE
BEHANFEHERRBRELES

BANERPTIS

B SRR

S o

(£@)ARATA
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5 Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

(ii)

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax in 2015
and 2014 as the Group did not earn any assessable profit
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during 2015 and 2014.
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Kunshan QT
Hong Kong”) is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5%
in 2015 and 2014.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC statutory
income tax rate is 256%. Kunshan Q Technology Limited
(“Kunshan QT China”) was qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) in 2009, which entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from the year
2009 to 2011 according to relevant regulations in the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law. Kunshan QT China
successfully renewed the HNTE qualification on 21 May
2012 and 6 July 2015 respectively and continued to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for another three
years commenced from 1 January 2015.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. According
to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited

Annual Report 2015

(B =AHEAN UARKESIR)

5 &t K 8B

(%

(b) BERARRFENREMAIES
FHRFMEER: (&)

Hiat: (&)

(i

(i)

(iv)

HRAEER-_T—AFR_-FT
— PO A A R AS R B AN B S T
EHOERTEHN MR =2 —7h
FER-Z-—NFEWEHREBRER
i H B % - Kunshan Q Technology
(Hong Kong) Ltd. ([E L E K&
BN —AFR-_T—MNEFHE
1216.5%H) B RN BB RIS

BT N\F—A—B& FEH
ETEMBHBEEB25% - BRI T K
WEFRBEARAA ([EILEK
FE])R=ZZTNFRESHEM
2 ([RIEMmhE]) &% - B
(h#E AREMBE S ERBHE)
WEBREERER_ZTZNFE
—T——FZH15%NWERMEH
EoRINEHKFEDHIR=T—=
FRA=Z+—BAR=ZZT—AFtA
NERDET S RMEEER
WE=T—RAF—A—HEFTBI
—FHZEI%NEIMEHE-

RIE (hE ARAMB®EPSH
E) RERBRE NEBEART
BExa T N\F—H B
B B AR BRS B A
REDIRE AL EIE10% (HERED
W 175 7€ =k 22 B F8R R S ) BO Bt 2R B
M| R=FEN\F—H—H
Al A5 O AR 93 I 22 1) 286 A 0 A AR o4
RIEIH - R CPRIERMBTE 2
) REBEERE FR(EaE
BAILFEREBE25%HIA L
BaNeBEREEREEREER
5% H AR 8 R B 1A R 7
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31 December 20156 —E—HAF+ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BAE AN AAREHIR)

Directors’ emoluments 6 =EIHE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEF B A aEH 5£383(1) & KA
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Al (HEBEEENZER) BB FE230
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of HEMPEBEZ2ESEHMOT -
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE—_E—FRE+=-_A=+—H1t
FE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-based
and other scheme Discretionary payments
Fee benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total (note) Total
DRH A
AL ERHAR
He REMEA BAHEHER RiETA it (frzt) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%Trn AR%Tn ARETn ARETT AR%Trn
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. He Ningning CES 295 - - - 295 - 295
Mr. Yang Peikun BiEmEE - 375 17 600 992 238 1,230
Mr. Wang Jiangiang FRREE - 120 - 300 420 119 539
Independent non- BUEHTES
executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MFEEE - 82 - - 82 - 82
Ms. Chen Jun BE#LZ L - 82 - - 82 - 82
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIBEELE - 82 - - 82 - 82
Total st 295 41 17 900 1,953 357 2,310
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z-—-NWE+=-_H=+—H1t
FE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
Fee benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total (note) Total
IARH A
\ e 28 %%Eﬂﬁ?ﬂ
He  REMEN RAGEER Misfta NG (Hit) @zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFr ARETR ARETz ARET:H
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. He Ningning MEEEE 295 - - - 295 - 295
Mr. Wang Jiangiang FlRBEE - 140 - 250 390 452 842
Mr. Yang Peikun BEHEE - 252 8 608 868 905 1,773
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang NREZE - 7 - - 7 - 7
Ms. Chen Jun REaL - 7 - - 7 - 7
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RnBEE - 7 - - 7 = 7
Total @it 295 413 8 858 1,574 1,357 2,931

EsRE (£8)ERAF
201554 WECA
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to

the directors under the Group’s share option scheme. The value

of these share options is measured according to the Group’s

accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as

set out in Note 1(q)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal

terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note 23.

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable

by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid

individuals set out in Note 7 below as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of

office. There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the year.

7 Individual with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2014: two) of them are directors for the year ended 31
December 2015, whose emoluments are disclosed in Note

6 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

remaining individuals are as follows:

(B = AHEAN UARKEITR)

6 EEHM(Z

Wt %% BRI 5 B A B AR B
A T OB R O B -
R A 0 (E (AR S8 Y 51 ()P A 2
B A B D AR T B AD 32 5 0 B 3HER
B8

ZEBYRANFE (2FEXHBER
BT EHEF BB ) N 235K E -

RAFE AEBEHERESERT
XHETHEEASESHALENK
M ERRBEERBEENALNEEH
SR AR A TR B B2 18D 3K 1 7% Bl B A 7
E-RNAFE BESENEXRE
PACEE AT 0] 57 B ) 22 B

REHAL

HE_ZTZ—AFf+-_A=+—H1
FE AERFATHERE (=
T—NF - MB)REEF HFMR
ECHI I R o 2 T A TR H B 42
EERUINN

Salaries and other emoluments

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme

Share-based payments

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
KP4 Annual Report 2015

¥ o H At 3% B
BB TEAL
BRAE R B R

AR AR 2 B B A 5 3R

2015 2014
—B-Ef —T—pE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
845 646

787 558

15 17

30 231

1,677 1,452
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

Individual with highest emoluments
(continued)

The emoluments of the three (2014: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2015

are within the following bands:

7 BRE¥HAL(E

BE—= [ s
FE 2 (ZE—NF:=Z8)KR
SEHEALTHHFTATEER:

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 7871 %1,000,0007% 7T

Other comprehensive income

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—mF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

N - AE

3 3

8 HzmUWA

(a) BERHEAMEEWAZHEKRIEH

comprehensive income BRsE
2015 2014
—Z-1fF g S i3
Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount
BB &8 By eE BRB4EE B2 Diikr-% RiikeRm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARBETT ARBETT ARBETT
Exchange difference on BENTEER
translation of: BHEZR:
- financial statements of — B AREE SN
subsidiaries outside Lol =PI
the Mainland China BBHRE 23,827 - 23,827 (957) - (957)
Available-for-sale financial AL ESREE:
assets:
net movement in fair value AT EREEEFE
reserve (3,378) 507 2,871) (2,696) 404 (2,292)
Other comprehensive income  E 12 E A 20,449 507 20,956 (3,659) 404 (3,249)

EsRE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}

......
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

8 Other comprehensive income (continued) 8

(b) Components of other comprehensive income,
including reclassification adjustments

(BRAEBEAPN UAREIIR)

HttZHEWBA (&)

(b) HttZEWAAKEND (BEE
HoERAE)

Available-for-sale financial A ESmEE:
assets:

Changes in fair value recognised & N #3289 A (B &
during the year

Reclassification adjustments for ¥ # % 18 25 &) 2 E
amounts transferred to BHOHRAE:
profit or loss:
— gains on disposal (Note 3) — i E W= (H77#3)

Tax effect of fair value change ~ AFEZE AFEERN
charged to reserve M E

Net movement in the fair

REAM 2 ERARTER S
value reserve during the ERNNFEEEE
year recognised in other

comprehensive income

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
IRSYN Annual Report 2015

R

2015 2014
—E-5EF —ET—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
1,363 23,709
(4,741) (26,405)

507 404
(2,871) (2,292)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B%j:ﬁ? BN AAREEFIR)

9 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB101,999,000
(2014: RMB195,506,000) and the weighted average of
1,014,174,000 (2014: 615,753,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

9 BREF
(a) SREFBF

EREABATIUAKRARER
BREFBAEBRGERFARK
101,999,0007T (=& — Y & :
AR ¥195,506,0007T) & &
NEZETEBRAME T
1,014,174,000f% (==& — M
% :615,753,0000% ) & & E &t
=/ S

() EERMEFTE

2014
—F-mF
'000

T

Issued ordinary share R—H—H®
at 1 January BT SRR
Effect of issuance of share ETRDTZE
(Note 25(c)(iii)) (Bt zF25(c)(ii) )

Effect of capitalisation issue &AL 31T H) F2 28
Effect of issuance of shares R & XA FHEZE SR

upon initial public offering, BITROBZE
net of issuing costs (MBrEEITER)
(Note 25(c)(iv)) (H1:25(c)(iv) )
Effect of share options BITEBRENTE
exercised (Note 25(c)(vii)) (Kta25(c)(vii))

1,000,000 =

= 95,890
- 500,000

- 19,863

14,174 =

Weighted average number of R+=H=+—HBE /%

ordinary shares I F 15 21
at 31 December

1,014,174 615,753

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F iR}
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31 December 2015 —_E—FHF+_-_A=+—8
(Expressed in Renm|nb| unless otherwise indicated) (BB E AN UAARES|R)

9 Earnings per share (continued) 9 BRER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBEEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based SIREERENIIUAAANT T @
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders B AFEHERIARK
of the Company of RMB101,999,000 (2014: 101,999,0007T ( =& — O 4 :
RMB195,506,000) and the weighted average of ordinary A R #195,506,0007T ) & I i@
shares of 1,046,124,000 shares (2014: 660,740,000) A% hn#E -39 £41,046,124,0000%
calculated as follows: —Z— P4 : 660,740,0000% )

AREEFTENT

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares () ZERINEFIGE (#E)
(diluted)
2014
—F-mF
‘000
T i
Weighted average number of R+ =—A=+—HH
ordinary shares 3B AR N YH BR
at 31 December 1,014,174 615,753
Effect of deemed issue RAERIR AN R 7] B AR 7
of shares under the FrEIEITRO M E
Company’s share
option schemes 31,950 44,987
Weighted average number of R+—-A=+—HH
ordinary shares (diluted) I 57 A% DN - 35 X
at 31 December (#58) 1,046,124 660,740

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
iKe1s] Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 ¥R 2R Bfit 5

31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 ¥ -BERKE
Office
Plant and Motor and other Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles  equipment Sub-total in progress Total
WAR
BF HEREE RE HitRE et ERIR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%TR ARETT ARBTT AR%TR ARMTR ARET:x

Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-EE-A—H 79,142 181,304 517 23,928 284,891 17,016 301,907
Additions NE 2,128 42,529 172 10,705 55,534 42,745 98,279
Transfer from construction BB EERIR
in progress 21,972 3,196 - 1,712 26,880 (26,380) -
Disposals HE - (1,594) - - (1,594) - (1,594)
At 31 December 2014 and A =E—M4E
1 January 2015 +ZA=+-Rk
“Z-H¥-F-H 103,242 225,435 689 36,345 365,711 32,881 398,592
Additions NE 916 65,428 - 28,648 94,992 35,264 130,256
Transfer from construction ERBFHERIR
in progress 49,774 1,972 - 2,634 54,380 (54,380) -
Disposals HE = (8,213) - (924) (9,137) - (9,137)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-0F
+=A=t-H 153,932 284,622 689 66,703 505,946 13,765 519,711
Accumulated RIHE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2014 R-E-mE-A-A (4,257) (22,200) (116) (5,399) (31,966) - (31,966)
Charge for the year Rk (5,333) (17,046) (08) (6,422) (30,899) - (30,899)
Written back on disposals & BB - 60 - - 60 - 60
At 31 December 2014 and R =E—MF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+t-Ak
-E-[&-f—F (9,590) (39,186) (214) (13,815) (62,805) = (62,809)
Charge for the year FRMB (6,536) (21,451) (124) (18,777) (41,888) - (41,888)
Written back on disposals (& E# - 5,202 - 450 5,652 - 5,652
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
+-A=+-8 (16,126) (55,435) (339) (27,142) (99,041) - (99,041)
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NF
+-A=+—-H 93,662 186,249 475 22,530 302,906 32,881 335,787
At 31 December 2015 RZE-0F
+-R=1-H 137,806 229,187 351 39,561 406,905 13,765 420,670
The buildings held for own use are located in the PRC under HEBRENEFARPE - B P H
medium-term leases. FHL -
As at 31 December 2015, the Group was in the process of RZE—RAF+_A=1+—H &
obtaining the ownership certificate in respect of buildings in EEEAERMNATRZRESEEE
the PRC with net book value of RMB 25,415,000. AR ¥25,415,0007T 2 FEHEFT
BREE-

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

11 RBEATINKRE

11 Investments in subsidiaries

TREJIARAMEMBRRZE

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries

of the Company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless £ BAFAIN FTEEIRMHIER A
otherwise stated. AR -
Place and date of Proportion of equity
incorporation/ Place of Paid up capital/ interest attributable
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BHRER/
RAER EMRL/ RIEERAH EXY ERER ARREEREL S TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE Gf3

Q Technology (Great China) Inc. British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ BVI US$10,000 100% = Investment holding
(“QT Great China)* 3 July 2007 RERLES 10,000% 7T REARR

Q Technology (Great China) Inc. LERTES
([QT Great China ) * ([ZBRxEE])/

“Z2T+ELA=H

Kunshan QT China* People’s Republic of China PRC US$30,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and trading of
(BLESHEFREERAR) (PRC")/15 October 2007 # 30,000,000% 70 Camera Modules
(Note ) PEARLNE ([FE])/ SERERRGHEA

Bl s B —ZE 5 TATHA
(BIEAMBFHRERAH)

(Hiti)

Kunshan QT HongKong Hong Kong/15 January 2013 Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of Camera Modules

BUEREE &t/ -2-=5-AtaA i 10,0007 BEERGHRA

Chengdu Q Technology Limited* PRC/6 June 2014 PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100% Research and development
(Chengdu QT Subsidiary’) (Note i) HE/ZE-MERANE # A& #1,000,0007C of Camera Modules
(RBEAMBFHRBRAF) HERGEEEA

KBEAREFRRARAA
([RBEARBAR]) (Arzti)

Shenzhen Q Technology Limited* PRC/19 June 2015 PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100% Trading of Camera Modules
(“Shenzhen QT Subsidiary’) (Note 1) T8/ -F-A%&~ATNA & AR 1,000,000 BERGERA
(RTERMEFRBEERAR)

ATEAREFRBEERA
(PRNEARBAR) (Arzti)

Taiwan Q Technology Limited* Taiwan/1 July 2015 Taiwan TWD 3,000,000 100% = Trading of Camera Modules
(“Taiwan QT Subsidiary”) a%/-F-nftA-H aE 3,000,007 & % BERGERA
(REEHAMBERAA)

REEANRARAR"

([RREKHBAR])

& The entity was previously known as CK Telecom (Great China) # % B REJR % CK Telecom (Great China)
Inc. (“CK Great China”), and its name was changed to Q Inc. ([CK Great Chinal) ' E&TEN =
Technology (Great China) Inc. on 2 September 2015. T—AFNA=-BEHRAEQ Technology

(Great China) Inc. °
* The English translation of the companies’ names are for & ZNFEBzEXHEZEH-ERE %

=1
X =
reference only. The official names of the companies are in ZNFIRIER BT AR -

Chinese.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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31 December 2015 ==

i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkSBH4E8EIN ' LAAREBHIIR)

11 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(i)  The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated in

Hat -

11 RIBRRANEKRE (&)

() ZERBSNTEEMAZAINGTE

the PRC. Bz
(i)  The two entities are limited liabilities companies established in iy ZMREEBARNPBEKINERE
the PRC. ERA

12 Lease prepayments

12 HEFRSFRKIE

RMB’000
AREF T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 n mE—A—H - —Z—NF
and 2015 & —HRFE+=-_HA=+—H 20,791
Accumulated amortisation: E-g o
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE—MWF—H—H 2,495
Amortisation for the year F N 416
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE—NF+—A=+—HEK
—E—hRF—A—H 2,911
Amortisation for the year F N 416
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—FRF+-_A=+—H 3,327
Net book value: R RE:
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NFE+=A=+—8 17,880
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RFE+=-_HA=+—8 17,464
Interests in leasehold land represent prepayments of land NBEE LT ERIEAEEHMR S

use rights premium to the PRC authorities by the Group.
The Group’s leasehold land is located in PRC, on which its
manufacturing plants were built. The Group is granted land
use rights for a period of 50 years up to 2058.

The amounts include RMB416,000 (2014: RMB416,000)
current portion of the lease prepayments as at 31 December
2015.

*%F'ﬁiiﬁﬂ’]if@@ﬁﬁﬁéﬂf*iﬁ’ﬁﬁ
NREBE-AEENEHE L UR TP
= - EiiﬂzZtL_LﬁiﬁzLIJTf’
RS B X £ 3 F P A EY HA IR /350
FE_ZTRANFIH-

X

—E—RF+-_A=+—H %
E2EREARK416,000T (=F
—MF: AR¥416,0000) HE
8 1~ FRIE BN HA 2R 4D o

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

13 Intangible assets 13 B EE
Computer
software
SrEMEG
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MNFE—H—H 11
Addition during the year 2014 RZE—NFERE 141
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—NFE+=—A=+—HK
—T—hF—H—H 152
Addition during the year 2015 R_E—RHFERE 1,587
Disposals s (131)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=-_A=+—8 1,608
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—MNFE—H—H 7
Amortisation for the year F N 11
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE-—WFE+_A=+—BRK
—E—hF—A—H 18
Amortisation for the year FNEH 145
Written back on disposals i R 4 ] (31)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-A=+—H 132
Net book value: BRmEEE:

At 31 December 2014 RZE—NFE+=—H=+—~H” 134
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RFE+=-_A=+—8 1,476
The amortisation charges of the intangible assets for the year FRNETLEENEEBE X AS
are included in “administrative and other operating expenses” HUZE RPN [T K& H i & & 5

in the consolidated income statement. x| o

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
0] Annual Report 2015
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

14 Inventories 14 78
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position SEHMBIRAEXFIFNFEESRT:
comprise:
2015 2014
—E-IF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Raw materials R 54,800 56,170
Work in progress & m 80,715 37,591
Finished goods X & 73,747 47,836
209,262 141,597
The analysis of amount of inventories as an expenses and EARSt \BERTNEESTER
included in profit or loss is as follows: SN
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EF T
Carrying amount of inventories sold B HEFEMEREE 1,955,929 1,773,908
Carrying amount of inventories R AITH R HE AL
recognised as administrative ERARMEERAN
and other operating expenses FENEREE
and research and development
expenses 44,892 43,627
Write down of inventories 5 & MUk 1,147 984
2,001,968 1,818,519

E#AE (SE)ERAA
2015 5% QES
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31 December 2015 —

15 Trade and other receivables

T P e m |

(Expressed in Renm|nb| unless otherwise indicated)

(B = AHEAN UARKEITR)

15 EZ R HMBEWRIE

Current Assets
Trade receivables

— third parties

— related parties (Note 28(c))
Bills receivable

— third parties

Trade and bills receivables
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Amounts due from related parties
(Note 28(c))

Other deposits, prepayments and
receivables

REBEE
B 5 EWRIR

—%£=7

— AR 75 (H1at28(c))
e

—%£=7

B 5 WA KRR IE
B R R

& Y5 B Bgk 05 R0
(Wﬁ%@)

Hipiz® AN KA R
FE WK IR

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year, except
for trade receivables amounting to RMB504,000 (2014:
RMB503,000) and the Group’s deposits amounting to
RMB9,000 (2014: RMB82,000) as at 31 December 2015,
which are expected to be recovered after more than one year.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
W24 Annual Report 2015

2015 2014
—Z-HF —ZT—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBT T
751,647 511,695
13,546 29,068
116,670 310,606
881,863 851,369
(504) (503)
881,359 850,866

- 3

7,427 21,713
888,786 872,582

7 R 5 T L ft 8 M TR 2946 7
—F P SRR BB M
T-HET-A=t+-BAAR

#¥504,000c (Z 2 —UF: AR
503,0007C) M E HEKWFIBE R & A
R#9,000t (ZE—UF: AR¥

82,0007T) M) AR BIZ R BRIN - % F
SREHSNES —FREKE -
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Bills receivable represented outstanding bank acceptance
bills and commercial acceptance bills. As at 31 December
2015, bills receivable amounting to RMB27,128,000 (2014:
RMB31,280,000) were pledged as security for bills payable.
Bills receivable are due in 3 to 6 months from the date of
issue.

As at 31 December 2015, no bills receivable (2014:
RMB140,969,000) was pledged as security for bank
borrowings.

(@) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

15 EZ RHEMBEWRIR (&

JE W 2R B 5 R Bl HA UL SR A9 9B 17 K
HAEBEREEALEZER - R_Z
—ARE+—_A=+—HB AEH
27,128,0007C (= —MF : AR¥
31,280,0007T ) B fE I E & 2 3K ##
EAENEBNER BIKREEA
BITHHRASE6EA DI

R-ZE—RAF+ZA=1+—8"#
BEREKER(ZZTE—UE:ARE
140,969,0007T) EHFIERIRITIE
REVPELR o

(@) FRER DT

RBEHR RBEZAHE DM
R REBEERNE S EER
EREREE (B AESRHE
i, FE U AR IR ) Y BR Bk D AT 2R T

Within 1 month
More than 1 month but

R1E A AR

within 3 months

More than 3 months but
within 6 months

More than 6 months but B iE6(E BB M1FE AR

within 1 year

HiE1E A ER3ME A AR

8 E31E A ER6ME A AR

2015 2014
—E-EHfF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ETTT
613,254 468,413
250,927 382,363
17,165 89

13 1
881,359 850,866

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (continued)

In 2015, the basis of presentation of ageing analysis of
trade and bills receivables and respective comparatives
above were changed from due date to invoice date. The
Directors consider such presentation is more in line with
the industry practice.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables
amounting to RMB116,670,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB310,606,000) were settled by bills and recorded as
bills receivable which will be matured within 3 months.
Such settlement arrangement therefore would result
in actual cash receipts in relation to those customers
beyond the respective original credit periods from the
Group’s cashflow perspective.

As at 31 December 2015, amounts due from related
parties are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
repayment terms.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade and bills receivables directly (see
Note 1(K)(i)).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
144 e Report 2015

(B = AHEAN UARKEITR)

15 EZ R EMBYRE (Z)

(a)

(b)

AR 0 47 (42)

R-ZE—RF BEHRWFER
ERWREBEZRED T R EEE
AhEz 25 E%mEHHEH
BEREZRH -EER /WL
2HNENEITEED -

R—ZE—RAF+_A=+—
H BS5BKAREBEARK
116,670,0007C (=& — Y
F+_A=+—H:AR%
310,606,0007T) A E B E&E I
AR ARWER  ZFRKERE
1531 A R BB o B it - fE AR
SEBREeRENAE L ZEE
ZHRBEZHBEFPNERR
cWHBBREEED-

R-_ZE—RF+_HA=+—8"
EN B A RE AERE 28
K 4 & F & R EARR o

EZRUREARERRERE

B 5 MW RIE & E W R AR
BEEEBRBRBRLDE  BRIER
SEEMKEEBSER TG
MMTEMS ERERT  BRE
BEEEDAE S EWRKIAERE
WEEME (RHEE1KG)) °
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 ES R EMEWRKIE (£)
(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) EZEWFIEREREERE
(continued) (#%&)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during FRARRBEOESHNOT :

the year is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HfF —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR AREETTT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 503 371
Impairment loss recognised B R ER (B E5 18 1 251
Reversal of impairment loss B[R B ERAREEE
recognised = (113)
Uncollectible amounts ST AT B 3R I8 ] £
written off - (6)
At 31 December R+Z-—A=t+—H 504 503
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade and bills R-ZE—RF+-_A=1+—8"
receivables of RMB504,000 (2014: RMB503,000) were REE AR¥504,000T (ZF
individually determined to be impaired. The individually — PO F: AR #503,0007T ) &Y
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers BHRWHIENEKEEE [
that the Group terminated business with them, and R EE F ARE © & 5l E /Y FE UL
management assessed that the receivables are not REFTETEREED K |FEK
probable to be recovered. Consequently, specific SCHEEBNEREER BERE
allowances for doubtful debts were recognised in full. [E =T {4 A 8 fE Uk s 1B S K 1] Bk
The Group does not hold any collateral over these WE e By RERA B BEEED
balances. 2HER AEEVEFEZS
ERE TR

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

15 EZREMEBWRE (&)

(c) WEREENESEWREREY

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired ~ BE 7k 0 B 5 oK Rl (B
Less than 3 month past due 8 BAS{E A A

Over 6 less than 12 months i B R A6 (E A |
past due Did121E A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2015, receivables that were past due
but not impaired related to customers that have good
track records with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RE

BE R B B 7R oK HL R 4% R A RE
BE 5 W R MR E B
BRI T -

2015 2014
—E-—hHF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETTT
864,181 850,776
17,165 89
13 1
881,359 850,866

BE 2R 380 2 7 R Ok (B /O FE UK TR
BTV EB R LN Z AR
FaR-

RZZE—RAF+ZA=1+—8"
£ 480 BB R R (B &Y FE UK KT8 B
AEBEREBERHEIENEFREA
Mo RBBENKLR BEER
A BAREEEZYELRERKN
PHEZEERDERRAZ
el - M T B Z S ERIE
R E B o
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

16 Other financial assets 16 HthE®MEE

2015 2014

—E-HEF —ET—EF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Foreign currency forward contracts ~ 4MERHIA 4 600 =

Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE - 125,377

600 125,377
The fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts is INERHIAEDONANFETEARE
measured using the forward exchange rates at the end of the KRR EERT= WHE AE
reporting period and comparing to the contractual rates, with Rt BATSEEMIRERE R

the resulting value discounted back to the present value. The H& 28 EAMR &6 A -

terms of the forward contracts are 6 months.

As at 31 December 2015, no available-for-sale financial R-E—AF+-_/f=+—8 " L&
assets (2014: RMB125,377,000) had been pledged as —FT-HF: AR 125,377,000
security for bank borrowings (Note 18). )Rt ESsmEED EFELARE

TTERHELR (FHEE18) ©

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

17 Pledged bank deposits

17 BIEFRITER

Pledged for BT Z IR
- bills payable —EREE
— bank borrowings —RITIER
— others —HAth
Pledged bank deposits B IPIRITIFE R

Bank deposits have been mainly pledged as security for bank
borrowings and bills payable (see Notes 19 and 20). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowings and bills payable.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2015 2014
—Z-HF —ZT—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T

835 3,848
144,684 245,271
- 800
145,519 249,919

iR 7

TERCTBEERERRITE

RAEENEENER(RHE19R
20) - BHEMRITFERERIFERRA
RITIER R EN RIBRIERER -

18 BERBEESEEY

(@)

Cash in hand FHEES
Cash at bank IRITIF X
Cash at bank and in hand RITTERKEFEES

As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents
placed with banks in the Mainland China amounted to
RMB234,125,000 (2014: RMB168,914,000). Remittance
of funds out of the Mainland China is subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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RekATSEYERE:
2015 2014
—E2-1% —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
51 15
282,164 553,089
282,215 553,104

R—_E—RAF+_A=+—
B AEBTFARBEAKERTT
MRS RBESEEMAARE
234,125,00070 ( =& — Q4 :
AR #168,914,0007T) ° &
SEHABRAERELESTHBEK
JiT 78 145 7 48 B SN BE B ) 38 Bl 2
EHR o
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

18 BERAEEE/YW (&)

(b) BRBIADERIEREEFEBRENY

18 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: BR :
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARETTT
Profit before taxation B 250 B g Al 114,701 239,077
Adjustments for: BLLA R B IR
Depreciation e 41,888 30,899
Amortisation of lease TETE N RIE# 35
prepayments 416 416
Amortisation of intangible E B EH
assets 145 11
Interest expenses B 9,948 23,171
Interest income AEMA (11,311) (5,236)
Loss/(gain) on disposal LEWE  BE R
of property, plant and ZENEE (RS
equipment 1,098 (123)
Loss on disposal of Intangible ~ H &£ & & &5 18
assets 100 =
Impairment loss for inventories 7% & i (& /&5 18 1,147 984
Impairment loss for trade and 2 5 I H e W RIR
other receivables B EEE 1 138
Equity-settled share-based DNEREENROHTRR S
payment transactions 835 3,284
Net gain on foreign currency SN R BB S KV s F R
forward contracts (600) -
Investment income FERA 4,741) (26,405)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEE (W) 5,087 (1,840)
Listing expenses EWRAX - 16,892

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

18 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 18 RENBREEEY (&
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIANGAELEMEREMNE
generated from operations: (continued) BR: (&)
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETTT
Changes in working capital: EEESE:
Increase in inventories HFEEm (68,812) (13,276)
Increase in trade and other B 5 K B FE Y SR IE L A0
receivables (16,103) (291,421)
Increase in trade and other B 5 No FL M JE 1 5RIB G N
payables 270,656 382,947
Decrease/(increase) in pledged 17 BUR $R1T &) B I IR 17 3K
deposits with banks B, () 16,159 (16,461)
Decrease in amounts due to JE 1 BB Bt 77 SRIR R
related parties (2,442) (1,118)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts & Ug BA B 5 s IERL
due from related parties (3hn) 3 (3)
Increase in deferred income I JE U A 2 A0 3,777 975
Cash generated from KEMBHES
operations 361,952 342,916

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
510 Annual Report 2015
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B%j:ﬁ AN AARETIR)

18 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
(c) Major non-cash transactions

Major non-cash transactions during the year included the
following items:

18 RERBEEEY (&)
(0 TEFREXH

FR-EE2FRAEXHBEAT

Settlements of trade payables ~ EERETHEBED
directly by the bank through BSENMERE
import trade loan facilities B 5 JEN3IB

19 Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2015, the bank borrowings with effective
interest rate of 3.03% (2014: 2.97%) were repayable within
one year or on demand as follows:

15 B :
2015 2014
—E-RE — P4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARETT
83,285 317,961
19 SRITER

R—ZE—RAF+=_AR=+—8"
BEREA R AE3.03% (T —F:
297%) BER—FARIKERER
HERITE R T :

Bank borrowings RITENK
- secured (Note) — B (faz)
— unsecured — 4 4

2015 2014
—EB-RF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
142,164 580,159

= 132,520

142,164 712,679

E#AE (SE)ERAA
201554 QA
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

19 Bank borrowings (continued) 19 SRITER(2Z)
Note: The bank borrowings were secured by assets of the Group B SRITEFTAARNEENEEFEER %2
and the carrying amounts of these assets are as follows: EEMERRENT :

2015 2014
—ZE—-EfF —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBETTT

Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A[tHE L REE (#1:216)

(Note 16) = 125,377

Pledged bank deposits (Note 17)  BRIREITFER (MiE17) 144,684 245,271

Bills receivable (Note 15) e R (Ht7E15) - 140,969

144,684 511,617
As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings amounting to R-ZE—FRAE+-_A=1+—H" B
nil (2014: RMB74,378,000) were guaranteed by the related T (T —F : AR¥74,378,000
parties, namely Heyuan CK, Mr. He Ningning and Mr. Wang L) BERTTE RS R e 5 (BAR
Jiangiang. A M EEEERTREELE)E

Ro

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
P24 Annual Report 2015



20 Trade and other payables

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 55 ¥R 2 B 5

31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A AN AAREHIR)

20 EZ R EMENRE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®ETTT
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables and accruals B5RNRIENETER
— third parties —E=H 547,636 311,297
— related parties (Note 28(c)) —BAME 5 (H7aE28(c)) 203 1,208
Bills payable (Note () ENEE (HitE)
— third parties = 34,117 43,174
Trade and bills payables (Note (b)) B ZEMNRERENEZE
(Kiatm)) 581,956 355,679
Accrued payroll BRI T & 24,231 17,962

Amounts due to related parties JE T A st 5 5RIB (M iz (c))
(Note (c)) - 2,442
Other payables and accruals H BN RIBEREER 15,866 68,740

622,053 444,823

R-_ZE—RE+_A=+—BHWFF
EESNHMENFBEREER —F
NBEEHERERAXBIRENKE
B o

All of the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2015
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within
one year or are repayable on demand.

(a) As at 31 December 2015, bills payable with carrying
value of RMB25,771,000 (2014: RMB29,716,000) was
secured by bills receivable.

(@) RZE—RF+-_A=+—8"
BREEAARK25,771,000
T(ZZE—HNF: ARK
29,716,0007T) W FE RIBEE &
FEW E B -

R—E—RAF+=_A=+—
H:REERAKS,346,000
T(ZZE—HNF: ARK
13,458,0007T ) K FE REE A
BRI T R -

As at 31 December 2015, bills payable with carrying
value of RMB8,346,000 (2014: RMB13,458,000) was
secured by pledged bank deposits.

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

20 Trade and other payables (continued) 20 EZREHMENSRE (Z)
(b) An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables based (b) HBEZBHHE S 2ESHEMNK
on the invoice date is as follows: TBREMEZEE ZERESTOT
2015 2014
—E-—FF —ZT—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFTT
Within 3 months R3ME A AR 530,719 298,517
More than 3 months but B A3ME BB R6E A AR
within 6 months 1,464 9,450
More than 6 months but B iE6(E BB M1FE AR
within 1 year 912 623
More than 1 year HR A1 4 695
533,099 309,285
As at 31 December 2015, the accrued trade payables R-_E—FF+_RB=+—8"
which represented the amounts with no invoice received Bt E S EMNZIE (BIFRKIE
by the end of the year, amounted to RMB48,857,000 EWHMBZNRIE) BARK
(2014: RMB46,394,000). 48,857,000 (Z & —MM4F : A

R #46,394,0007T) °

(c) As at 31 December 2015, amounts due to related (c) RZZ2—RF+_A=+—H"
parties were unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed JENEB A IERERE 28
repayment terms. N £ B 5 iR FHARR o

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
YN Annual Report 2015
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 378 f5BASN - LA A REEFI])

Deferred income 21 IRIEW A
Government
grant
BT Bh
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MHFE—HA—H -
Additions during the year FARNE 1,000
Amortisation credited to consolidated TS BF UL 2 3R B 5H
income statement (25)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE—NF+=—A=+—HEK
—E—RF—H—H 975
Additions during the year FARNE 4,980
Amortisation credited to consolidated ST A OF UL 25 = A5 5
income statement (1,208)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RFE+=A=+—8 4,752

The deferred income as at 31 December 2015 represented
unamortised government grants.

Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at the rate of 20% starting from 1
December 2011 (before 1 December 2011: 18%) of the
eligible employees’ salary rate to the Schemes. The Group
has accrued for the required contributions which are remitted
to the respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the
retired employees covered under the Schemes.

22

R-ZZE—RAEFE+-_A=+—0 &
HE WA FE AR B SH R AT 7 B ©

EERKER
R R R B

REEHNTRRMNBERAG2ERFEH
AR S & RIS 78 P pK 2 B0 R TE
HFRREFFE ([ZETE]) &
B ——F+=-A—HHK"
FEMBARIBUNAEREEF S
B20% (R=—E——F+=-H—H
Al :18% ) B bt &= ) 5% &1 &) 1E 3 it
R AEEBERMTHK  RER
BIAARS B T &b 5 BUT # - i
75 BURT # B8 Bt FE R 5% =1 81 BT 08 e /9
RRNEEXNRAREAER T

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Starting from 2014, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan

vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

QT Great China has a share option scheme (the “Employee
Share Option Scheme”) which was adopted on July 2011
whereby the directors of QT Great China were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite certain employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
pre-IPO share options (the “Employee Share Options”). The
Employee Share Options were granted on 1 January 2012
(the “2012 Employee Share Options”), 1 January 2013 (the
“2013 Employee Share Options”) and 1 January 2014 (the
“2014 Employee Share Options”) respectively. After all of
the above grants, a total number of 628.60 share options
would be granted to certain directors and employees (the
“Grantees”). 50%, 25% and 25% of the options granted vest
on 1 January 2015, 1 January 2016 and 1 January 2017

respectively (the “Vesting Dates”).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
156 e Report 2015
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23

(B =AHEAN UARKES)

EERKER (&)
REHRFE B ()

B —OFE ~EETRE (B
BRI EABSEEEN) ARE
BAEBEGERLN EETEBHN 2B
WARMARERHERTEINES
EERsERESFE ([RESET
gl]) BEEFTERBBILXTA
B R EHIFERNREE - BIERIE
e EBERERBESIEAR
HAEE AERSWIERENR &AM
@A B/ _EBR A30,000% T (R =
T —HF N AR A25,00087T) ¥
STEIEH RN

B £t S FRIA SN - AR SR B 5L X AR
ReRALBEBEMEKNEE-

DiESREEURGHERDN

X5

QT Great China R —ZE——F+ A
A —IEAE AR T E] ([1E B AR
s+2l]) - it - QT Great China® %
ERENHNEEZEIAEELNES
(BREAEBEEANKERARNES)
EMmEaXR A ARBEERERE ([
EERE]) - EEBRES N
T——_F—A—B([Z2——%1F
BEkE]) —E—=F—HF—H
(IZ2—=FFEEEERE]) K=
T-—MFE—A—B([ZZT—NFE
BEREELE -RATE LR
% & H628.60 0 BREBETE
FTEEREES ([FEZEAL) c50%
25% R25%E R L EIRE D BN =
E—RE—HF—B —T—XNF—
A—BRER-_ZT—+F—A—B ([
BRHEFEB-
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31 December 2015 —E—RF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 378 f5BASN - LA A REEFI])

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the Employee Share Option
Scheme, the Employee Share Options will be converted into
options of the Company. The options are exercisable from the
Vesting Dates to 31 December 2017. Each of the options will
give the holder the right to subscribe for 1 ordinary share in
the Company and will be settled gross in shares. In addition,
the unexercised options granted under the Employee Share
Option Scheme will be forfeited when the Grantees cease to
be the directors/employees of the Group for reasons other
than death, ill-health or retirement.

Pursuant to the option exchange letters executed by each
of the grantees in favour of the Company and QT Great
China on 13 November 2014 (the date of modification), the
share options under Employee Share Option Scheme were
converted into share options of the Company. Accordingly,
599.35 share options under the Employee Share Option
Scheme were converted into 59,935,000 share options
of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme issued by the Company
with same terms and conditions, except that the respective
exercise prices were adjusted on a proportionate basis.

23 UEmEH ARG RERRD

<~ =
X % (/:'/5\

RIE & B B R 5T 8 ) AE A iR 3K
BEBRESBERSANRA R ER
E-EBREAINEEEHNE_—T—

F+-_A=+—HATE-BHBEK
BETHEARNATRBARFK
BB WA BEAEE - LI
RIEEEBERE SR LORITRE
BRESNRARARS S - &K EX
BARUIINBRTERAEEES
BB R R -

BER-Z—NF+—A+=8 (&
FTEH)ASERARARR R RQT
Great ChinaZ & BB I &2 K
B EBREREIIE TR AR EE IR
BANTREBRE - ALt - EEBR
T 5T 21 #9599.3517 B8 A 12 1R 15 48 A
16 3R X A& 1 8842 559,935,00015 A
NAIBITH E R AR E [ ERE
FrEMERE mMABTHEEDR
b B A 2 o

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k2B 155N LA AREES)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 UERGEEURDAERDN

(continued) X5 (&
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (@) REMERRGEHNOT
follows:
Number of Contractual
instruments  Vesting conditions life of options
TEHE BEH#RHT BRENSHNFEH

2012 Employee Share Options:
“ER-CHEEBKRE:

Options granted to directors:

RTEFNERE:
—on 1 January 2012 15,000,000 3 years from the date grant 6 years
-R-E——F—H—H B % A EA B3 6%
—on 1 January 2012 7,500,000 4 years from the date grant 6 years
-RN-FE——F—H—H B A E R4S 6%F
—on 1 January 2012 7,500,000 5 years from the date grant 6 years
-R-—T——F—HA—H B A E s 65

Options granted to employees:

KT REEMERE:
—on 1 January 2012 11,948,500 3 years from the date grant 6 years
-R-_T——F—HA—H B A EA R3S 6%
—on 1 January 2012 5,974,250 4 years from the date grant 6 years
-R-_ZET——F—H—H B A E s B4
—on 1 January 2012 5,974,250 5 years from the date grant 6 years
-RN-FE——F—HF—H B A E 5 6%F

Total share options granted 53,897,000

ERBREESH

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
ilste] Annual Report 2015
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 378 f5BASN - LAA R EEFI])

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 28 UEREEURGBERDN

(continued) X5 (&
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (@) REMGARREHFIMT :
follows:
Number of Contractual
instruments  Vesting conditions life of options
TEHE BEEHG BRENSHNFEH

2013 Employee Share Options
—E-=HEEERE
Options granted to employees:

KT EEMERE:
—on 1 January 2013 2,186,500 2 years from the date grant 5 years
-R=—E—=F—H—AH B A E oA 5%
—on 1 January 2013 1,093,250 3 years from the date grant 5 years
-R=ZE—=F—H—H EEsEa=p:il s 5%
—on 1 January 2013 1,098,250 4 years from the date grant 5 years
-R=E—=F—H—H B A E s 5%

Total share options granted 4,373,000

ERBREEH

2014 Employee Share Options
“E-NFEEBEKRE

Options granted to employees:

RTREEMERE:
—on 1 January 2014 832,500 1 years from the date grant 4 years
—-RZE—HmHFE—A—H B L A ERIF 45
—on 1 January 2014 416,250 2 years from the date grant 4 years
—RZE—HF—H—H B A H 25 45
—on 1 January 2014 416,250 3 years from the date grant 4 years
—-RZE-—HFE—-—H—H B A E 35 45

Total share options granted 1,665,000

ERBREEH

E#BE (£8H)ERAF
2015F F 5}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & #5835

23 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning R &F ) H R
of the year

Granted during the year RERBEE

Forfeited during the year RERB R

Exercised during the year RERBTE

Outstanding at the end RERHKTE
of the year

Exercisable at the end RERATE
of the year

On 13 November 2014, the share options under
Employee Share Option Scheme were converted into
share options of the Company, with 1 share option under
Employee Share Option Scheme being converted into
100,000 share options of the Company, at the same
terms and conditions, except that the respective exercise
prices were adjusted on a proportionate basis from
RMB40,000 to RMBO0.4 per share.

The 2012 Employee Share Options outstanding at 31
December 2015 had an exercise price of RMBO0.4 (2014:
RMBO0.4) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 2 years (2014: 3 years).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

AARYS)

23 UEmEHIURDAERRD
X5 (%&)

(b) BREHERTEENT:

2015 2014
—E-IF —T-mF
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
THE BREHA TEE BREXA
RMB RVMB
N AR

04 56,700,000 04 60,556,000
- - 04 2,304,000
04  (1,010,000) 04 (6,160,000)

0.4  (27,945,000) - _

0.4 27,745,000 0.4 56,700,000

R-_ZE—NF+—A+=H"1&
BEREREFEETEREDS
AR R R B E - R AERMEK
MigH =110 1E B BIRERT 2
H T B ix 8 45100,0001 A&
NEHERE - EAEETTEEE R
ik A R #40,0007T 3% Lt 71 78
BEBRARKEO4TT -

RZE-—RAE+_A=+—H
MAITEN - ZT——FEERE
BRENTEEAARK4T
—E—OFE: AR®04TT) A
KnEEAFpeNFHR2F
—E—UF:3F) e
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23 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

(c)

options are as follows: (continued)

The 2013 Employee Share Options outstanding at 31
December 2015 had an exercise price of RMBO0.4 (2014:
RMBO0.4) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 2 years (2014: 3 years).

The 2014 Employee Share Options outstanding at 31
December 2015 had an exercise price of RMB0.4 (2014
RMBO0.4) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 2 years (2014: 3 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based
on black-scholes model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the black-scholes
model.

B 5 ¥ e B 5

31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 15EA - A A REESI))

23 UEmEH ARG RERRD
X5 (%&)

(b) BREHERTEEMT:

(c)

(&)

R-_E—RE+=-A=+—H
MATEN - ZT—=FEEHE
BRENTEERARK4T
—E—F: AR¥0.47T) A
MnEFEARBeNFHR2FE
ZE—HF:3F) o

R—E—AF+-_A=+—H
HMAITEN -_Z—NFEEER
BENITEERSARKO4T
—E-—HE: ARKO0.47T) KA
KRG E LT R2F
—E—F:3F) -

BRENQIFERRR

PASR h B P o # B ) R 75 B 2
FEZ2ERLERENRFE
At E - R EREN A AT E
BN —SFEHREGAE B
BENEOFREZRERE
REABIEER - IRPITENTA
HeEs Am IR -—FRHRE
7 o

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 UERGEEURDAERDN
(continued) X5 (#&)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BRENAFERRBRE (&)
(continued)
2012 2013 2014
—T--F —E—=F —meF
Employee Employee Employee
Share Options Share Options Share Options
BB E B BB E EEBERE
Fair value at measurement R 2R BN A TE RMB16,206 RMB25,332 RMB89,705
date AE#16,20670 ARKE253327T  AR#89,7057T
Spot Price REE RMB35,394.46  RMB50,772.55 RMB123,604.19
ARE ARE AR
35,394.467C 50,772.557C 123,604.197C
Exercise Price (Note(b)) I (fi72 b)) RMBO.4 RMBO.4 RMBO.4
AREQAT AREQAT ARE0.4TT
Expected volatility TEHRR & 53.8% 51.3% 47.9%
Option life (expressed as BB AR H (PR A 4.88 3.88 2.88
weighted average life used  F {& F #) o0 35
in the modelling). FHETR) o
Expected Dividend J”Ei,ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%\ 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (based [ B 1) 2 (4 X 3.27% 3.25% 4.42%
on CNY China Government ﬁHAE%f%W
Bond Yield) =EFE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
6P Annual Report 2015

T8 HA R 8 DAJEE SR IR A B (&
1A B P HE DN #E <7 15 R 85 F H At
) YREBELARAEEMRE
R 2ROR 8 3R 0 (E fa] B 1F
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 &15EA - A A REESI))

23 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

23 LEREEUROR/ERHN
X5 (%&)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)
R R TR IR AR AS R AF IR i © 3
ERHEMMAERKN R FE

R0 R E B IR - X kg
3 4 B 75 T 35 R A o

24 SO AR R PR FTEHR

(a) &OFBF RN R Y B HA B R

5

2015 2014
—E-FE —ET—mFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Current tax assets BERIE & &
PRC Corporate Income Tax FECERSH
Current tax payable B HA P& < B 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax 2RISR
Hong Kong Profit Tax BBEMEFH

10,349 =
- 8,108
2,095 3,860
2,095 11,968

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F 5}
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31 December 2015 —Z—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k2B 1585 LA AREES)

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement 24 & tBi&ERRETPHNFFER

of financial position (continued) (4&

(b) () Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)) CERANEZHREEERS
recognised: =
The components of deferred tax assets and FERARE GBI FEAR R R FER
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement RRIETIEEE A ENAE
of financial position and the movements during the BCER D R B Ehan T

year are as follows:

Fair value Unrealised
change of PRC profit
other dividend arising from Write
financial  withholding intra-group down of Deferred Accrued

assets tax transactions inventories income expenses Total

ESER

2t NABRS

EHEE HERS EER
ATELRD BB ARRER FEMA BEYA B BEX @3t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARETR

At1 January 2014 R-E-mE-f—R 011) - 5114 38 . 163 4704
Charged/(credited) to nke/ GA) &M kaR

consolidated income (Hiztoe)

statement (Not 573) . 7.800) (457) (190) 146 539 7.762)
Charged to reserves BEENR 404 - - - - - 404
At 31 December 2014and ~ WZZ-EE+=A=1—8

1 January 2015 R-E-EF—F—F (507) (7.800) 4657 148 14 702 (2,654)
Charged/(credited) to NBE/ GIA) A& HkER

consolidated income (Witsa)

statement (Note 5(a)) - 5,760 (623) 27 567 (702) 5,029
Charged to reserves ERENR 507 - - - - - 507
At 31 December 2015 W-E-RE+-B=+-A - 2,040) 4,03 175 713 - 2,882

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Y Annual Report 2015
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31 December 20156 —E—HAF+ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K?Fj:ﬁ? BN - A ARSI

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement 24 & GfEIIEARR R P TS5
of financial position (continued) (#4&)

(b) (i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (b)(ii) EHHBEMRREREE:
statement of financial position:

2015 2014
—E-IfF —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Net deferred tax asset RE G SRR R R
recognised in the FIETIE & EFE
consolidated statement of
financial position 4,922 5,146
Net deferred tax liability RE G SRR R FERR M
recognised in the EIEFIE B EFHE
consolidated statement of
financial position (2,040) (7,800)
2,882 (2,654)
(b) (iii) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b)(iii) FRERELEBEERE
The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities AEES T F KB A A
in respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax RZE—RAF+ZA=1—
relating to certain undistributed profits of the A B BE T RD R AT
PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 since A B R S TR B iR IR
the Group controls the dividend policy of these ERIBEE REERAS
subsidiaries. Based on the assessment of the s ZENB AR E
management, as of 31 December 2015, the BE-RIEBEEEEN G &
undistributed profits amounted to RMB388,759,000 EE—AF+—A=+—
(2014: RMB230,576,000) will not be distributed in H KolEafeBARE
the foreseeable future. 388,759,000t (=& — M

F: AR #¥230,576,000
) TR A 7B R AR K
DK °

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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31 December 2015 —_E—FHF+_-_A=+—8
(Expressed in Renm|nb| unless otherwise indicated) (FrSETERAIN - AAREEF)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends 25 BES #EERRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) I BE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBESHERSIHHOFY
balances of each component of the Group’s REREHROE RSN G G
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated mE B K o AR EIHE R E R E D
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in RENEFERONEFF BT
the Company’s individual components of equity between s
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Equity
settled  Accumulated
share-based loss/
Share Share Exchange Other payment Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
DEREHN
DRBAER  RHEER/
B& RHEE ENRE Hib R BELT | REER it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wit ARBTE ARETE ARBTRE ARETR ARETR ARETx ARET:R
25d() 25d(i) 25d(v) 25d(v)/23
At 5 May 2014 (date of incorporation) R=Z-MERARA
(e EH) - - - - - - -
Issue of one ordinary share of BTBREEOBTEBR
HK$0.01 each 25¢() - - - - - - -
Reserves arising from the reorganisation ~ E#E £ K& 25¢(i) - - - 66 5,529 - 5,595
Capital injection from controling BRRETE
shareholder 25¢(ii) - 123,294 - - = = 123,294
Issue of new shares under initial public ﬁ%&ékﬂfﬁ‘%‘ﬁ
offering (‘IPO, net of listing expenses) (TERRREE]) BIHRD
(3% EW5 § ) 25¢(iy) 1,977 534,877 = = = = 536,854
Capitalisation issue BRMEET 25¢(h) 5931 (5,931) - - - - -
Equity settled share-based payment NEREEMNRDAE
transactions REXRS - - - - 3,284 - 3,284
Loss for the period BNER = = = - - (11,162) (11,162)
Other comprehensive income Hp2AKA - - (934) - - - (934)
As at 31 December 2014 and R-B-RE+=A=+-ARK
1 January 2015 —E2-1§-f-H 7,908 652,240 (934) 66 83813 (11,162) 656,931
Share issued under share option schemes 12 8 B &t &I B 27k (7 224 16,144 - - (5,190) - 11,178
Equity settled share-based payment NEREEHNNRND A
transactions ERARRS - - - - 835 - 835
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 58,204 58,224
Dividend approved in respect of the BEFEHAERS
previous year 25b)li) = = = = = (41,699) (41,699)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA - - 40,683 - - - 40,683
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-EF+-A=+-8 8,132 668,384 389,749 66 4,458 5,363 726,152

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Al618] Annual Report 2015
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 15EA - A A REESI))

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends

()

(ii)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

25 E HERKRE (&

(b) BE

)

FRENELIREFEAK
L

2015 2014

—E—EHF —ZT—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

Final dividend proposed after 7R & Hi 45 R 14

the end of the reporting BEAHKRERT
period of nil (2014: —E—F:
RMB4.06 cents equivalent AR¥E4.065
to HKD 5.2 cents) (HBER5.2/8) )

The final dividend proposed after the end of the year
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end
of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year.

- 40,622

(i)

Final dividend in respect of BAFAEHER
the previous financial year, Sz E— @B

approved and paid during FERMKRE
the year, of RMB4.06 cents BRAR4.065
per share (2014: nil) —ET—mFE:F)

R|EMR RAFELER
&2 FBR RIS M AR R

FAEHBERZMZ L — 1A
BFEEEMNELGKREFEA
KL

2015 2014

—2-EF —T-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETTT

41,699 -

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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31 December 2015 _E—HF+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (c)

Authorised shares of the Company

(B =AHEAN UARKES)

RN

AR EEERG

No. of shares

IR & E

25 E€ HERRE (&)

Amount
©8
HKS$
BETT

Ordinary share of HK0.01 each &% E{E0.01/8 7T & 3 I

50,000,000,000

500,000,000

Ordinary shares of the Company issued

Nominal value

Nominal value

Number of of fully of fully
shares issued paid shares paid shares
ERTROEE HBERGEE HBERGEE
HK$'000 RMB’000
FAT ARET T
At 5 May 2014 (date of RZZT—NFERAARA
incorporation) (MR AE)
Issue of one ordinary share of 2178 M EE0.01/5 7T
HK$0.01 each (note(j) LB () 1 - =
Share issued upon HHEEETRN
reorganization (note(i)) (Hiz2) 1 - -
Additional share issued B BITREINRAD
(note(ii) (B (i) 1 - -
Capitalisation issue (note(vi) ~ BA&ACZE1T (H1:2(vi)) 749,999,997 7,500 5,931
Share issued by share offer L&D Z 4TS
(note(iv)) (i) 250,000,000 2,500 1,977
At 31 December 2014 and AT Mm%
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—H8k
—T—hHF¥—HF—H 1,000,000,000 10,000 7,908
Share issued under share REBRETEIE 21T
option scheme (Note(vij)) BRAn (&t (vii)) 27,945,000 279 224
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—ARF
+=-B=+—8H 1,027,945,000 10,279 8,132

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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31 December 2015 ==

ﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘%lﬁﬁi

i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 378 f5BASN - LA A REEFI])

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 25 BE&€ - HERKRE (7£)

(c)

Share capital (continued)

Ordinary shares of the Company issued (continued)

(0

(i)

(i)

On 5 May 2014, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability with an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each. On 13 November 2014,
the Company increased its authorised share capital
from 38,000,000 shares to 50,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each.

One share of HK$0.01 was issued and allotted
to Sharon Pierson, the initial subscriber, at par,
who then transferred such share to Q Technology
Investment Inc. (“QT Investment”) on 5 May 2014.
Upon the completion of reorganisation on 26
June 2014, the Company issued and allotted one
additional share of HK$0.01 to QT Investment,
which is owned by Mr. He Ningning, and acquired
all the issued share capital in QT Great China from
Mr. He Ningning and the Company became the
holding company of the Group since then.

According to the resolution of the Company’s
board of directors on 18 August 2014, the
Company issued 1 additional ordinary share at
HK$0.01 each to QT Investment. The newly issued
ordinary share was satisfied by cash amounting to
USD20,000,000. The excess of nominal value of the
newly issued share capital was credited to share
premium account.

(c) B& (&)

BRITELATEZEER (&)

()

(it)

(i)

%—%—miﬂﬂﬁa
PIN/N Eﬁxﬁ%&ﬁm
A é%ﬁaﬁﬁﬁ s
Eﬁx$2%38o,ooo,%m
7 /38,000,000/% & X &
BEO.O1EB T RMG K=
E-—mWE+—HA+=8"
AAal g EEERANA
38,000,0008% B {7 & o =
50,000,000,0000% & % ™
BO0.01B TR D »

—REE0.0O1E TH AR A
EEEZETREZETOGR
B A Sharon Pierson - E &
Sharon Piersonid —Z —
FRAAAB#HZRMNEE
TEREEERAA([E
KIHE]) RZT—UF
NAZ+HAABEATKE
RARIAEREEETR
fid % — R E{E0.01 8 L A
{o] 22 28 ?ﬁi%ﬁﬁﬂ’]%ﬁﬁl\ﬂx
9 3 [7) {n) %8 28 5F AR WK EE QT
Great ChmaE’U’fa‘KE?ﬁ?ﬁ
AR - QJ&MKAETBZZ%ZF%
ok /NG

BREARAEFEN _F
—MENAT=ZBRRE
% ARA]A LRI E ETT
FA%0.017E T M1 AR BE SN &
A e FEITE B TIAR
$20,000,000% TT)E (& © ¥
FITRAEENBLRD
AR O B Bk

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(B =AHEAN UARKES)

25 E€ HERRE (&)

(c) BA (&)

Ordinary shares of the Company issued (continued) ERTAATEER ()
(iv) The shares of the Company were listed on the (v X 2aIRHNR_F — M@
Stock Exchange on 2 December 2014, with a F+_A-_HEBAH

total number of 250,000,000 shares issued to the
public, with par value of HK$0.01 each. The gross
proceeds received by the Company from the global
offering were approximately HK$697.5 million.

(v) The equity shareholders are entitled to receive v)
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

(vi) Pursuant to the written resolution of the Company’s (vi)
shareholders passed on 13 November 2014,
conditional upon the crediting of the share premium
account of the Company as a result of the issue
of shares pursuant to the global offering the
directors had authorised to allot and issue a total
of 749,999,997 shares, by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$7,499,999.97 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company,
credited as fully paid at par to the shareholders
as appearing on the register of members of the

Company.

(vii) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2015, options
were exercised to subscribe for 27,945,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration
of RMB11,178,000, all of which was credited
to share premium account. RMB5,190,000 was
transferred from the equity settled share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited

Annual Report 2015

Em - mAaREe HEBET
250,000,000 & ik | &
0.01BTTHIR D - A AR B
FERBEWEFT S RIA B
#7 /697,500,000/% JT °

BHEREAEREDTKE
IREVRE - I B L AR
MR ARRIRRARE LR —
R-MAEBERRAREF
HREEFHRFHA-

BEARRRIBRER=_Z—M
F+—A+=0RBHEM
RBR BFARARMEE
REREZIRBEERITRG
MExSHERE  EEERE
FERBARRARRMD HEEERS
#7,499,999.978 Tt E A
{E iR EER &SR A R
RECMARERARE KT
& $£749,999,9970% I 15
ABRIIIERE -

(vii) IRIEEE R 1EET 2| Z 7T /R (7

HEz_ZT—AHF+ A
=+—HLFE BRE
BETFEUREREARK
11,178,0007T R B A A &)
27,945,000/ L@z - KB
HEF AR D R ERR - B AR
R E AR () B E R AT SR
%5 AR ¥5,190,0007T 35 £

ERPDEER-
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 378 f5BASN - LA A REEFI])

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 25 B% HERKRE (72

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in Note 1(u).

(iij) PRC Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the Mainland China are required to appropriate 10%
of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of profits
to parent companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of its registered capital.

(d) RENEERAR

)

(i)

(iii)

BG=E

REFSHERRE (K
) ARBRMEERLE
B & & Al 2k T AR A K
R-RASEEESRER
BEBZE ARALARE
NWERBEHBRETBER
HIR A& °

EZEE

EXFEERRERBEAL
PN SE 75 60 B 75 S ok P EE A
M —YISNEZER - ZHEET
REBEM (T E S SR
BRI o

o B JE 1

R BN AR T
$R B PO ST B A
BAREKBERPEG
35081 % A8 7 B0 B B 74
IR 10% (I 31 5B
B BAEERBHEE
BEERBEBEEHAL
M50% A 1L - BT Z e
BRI A 75 R B
7o

EERESAEREIER
77 A FA DA 88 R 5T B 18 5 il
MBRARIMER  ERE
BFERENEHRTMERET
fEARM25% °

E#BE (S8H)ERAF
2015F F i}
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Other reserve

(B =AHEAN UARKED)

25 E€ HERRE (&)

(d) RENEERAR(E)

(iv) Efei#fE

The other reserve of the Group as at 31 December

2015 represents the difference between (i) the
carrying amount of share capital of QT Great Ching;
and (i) the nominal value of the share issued by

the Company in exchange for all the issued share
capital of QT Great China under the reorganisation
of the Group completed on 26 June 2014.

(v) Equity settled share-based payment reserve v)

The equity settled share based payment reserve

comprises the portion of the grant date fair value

of unexercised shares options granted to the
directors and employees of the Group that has
been recognised in accordance with the accounting

policy adopted for share-based payments in Note

1(a)ii).

(vi) Fair value reserve

(vi)

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net

changes in the fair value of other financial assets
held by the Group as at the year end dates net of
deferred tax, and is dealt with in accordance with

the accounting policies in Notes 1(g) and 1(k)(i).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

AEBR-_Z—RAFE+ =
A=+ —H®MHMEERE
(i) QT Great China#J %A
BREE: A REASER
—E—NmEXNAZTNH
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TIRMDEBERRBLQT Great
ChinaZ2 ¥ 2 #1TIR A 2 A
M Z%E e~

U GEURGBEBL T
e

NS E AR ABERN
HREERBERE WM T
1(q) (i) BT S 3L LA B AP 2 Bt
B R E 2 5T R R
BRYAEBEEREBZK
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31 December 2015 — 5 — T ey
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &15EA - A A REESI))

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 25 BE® - HERKRE (7£)

d) RENEERAR(E)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
of reserves (including share premium and
retained profits) available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB673,747,000 (2014:RMB641,078,000). After
the end of the reporting period the directors did not
propose a final dividend (2014:RMB4.06 cents per
ordinary share) (Note 25(b)).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure with reference
to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there are adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio was 11.7% at 31
December 2015 (2014: 63.4%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(vii) #ER S IREED

R-B—RF+_A=+—
B -a#to ik ARG R
BRHEBANRKE (B2E
BHaRERRBERN) B
A ANRB673,747,000
T(ZE—WE: ARK
641,078,0007T ) ° ¥ & HA
HER1E %%i?LmI
ﬁ%%% (ZE—OF:
FRERBRAREAL.065)
(WH£25()>

() EXERE

REEERBEANBEEERR
%Fﬁﬁlﬁﬁ%%m%ﬁ‘%
BRERRKEAERTEELD

RAGEKARGHE - %#ﬁ

B8 3 7 7 1 3R % 5 L M 2 5
IN- TS

AEEESERAERLREEE
BARZRE  AHAEFIRERE 2K
FHERTARERNESK
REHREEFRRE MR
k2 BERFTFE LA
IF%@ERMMM%%§$
RiEe

AEBL2BEEREBRKER
BARZEE - KEBARIEZRE
EHEESNEETE  BRE
RALBEELINEK RN T
—RFE+-_A=+—8" $¢l
MERBBELERA11.7% (ZF
— P04 :63.4%) °

ARABMEEMNERBGH
X ONF I IN ) B AR TE FTIR ) -

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F iR}
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31 December 2015 —_E—RF+_-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ex BB AAREF)

26 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and deposits with banks.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

(i) Trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
amounts of sales were related directly to the related
parties (Note 28(b)).

The management considers that related parties
are under influence of the Group’s Controlling
Shareholder, hence no material credit risk exists on
sales to related companies.

In respect of the sales to third party customers,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit terms. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. These
trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
174 e Report 2015
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

U

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. As
at 31 December 2015, 16.88% (2014: 19.77%) of
the total trade and bills receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer, and 61.12% (2014:
47.08%) of the total trade and bills receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group
does not provide financial guarantee which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 15.

B 5 ¥ e Bii 5

31 December 2015 —E—RF+-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 38 f5BASN - LAA R EEFI])

26 SREMREERLTE (&

(@) FERM (&)

)

ESRAMBENNE (&)

AEBEHRBNEERRE
EXERRFEAFBONE
2 FH it A & E R {E B
REHMEANRR  Rle%4E
SEEFTHNEERRE K=
Z-—RFE+=-_A=+—8"
B 5 W R IE & E W R &
HBEEH16.88% (—Z —
F:19.77% ) BB AREE
BAERF  ME S ERFIE
NEWEBEBENGC1.12%
—Z—PUF :47.08% )&
WEAEERAREF -
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B R ERA B ER
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31 December 2015 —F
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

T P e m |

26 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

()

(i)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group had unmatured bank acceptance bills
by endorsement totalling RMB60,144,000 (2014:
RMB9,865,000) as at the year ended 31 December
2015, which were derecognised as financial assets.
The transferees have recourse to the Group in case
of default payment by the issuing banks. In such
cases, the Group would have to repurchase these
bank acceptance bills at face value. As these bank
acceptance bills mature within one year from their
respective dates of issue, the Group’s maximum
loss in case of default payment is RMB60,144,000
(2014: RMB9,865,000) as at 31 December 2015
before these bills mature.

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills
issued by major banks or banks with qualified
rating in the PRC and considers that the credit risk
associated with such bank acceptance bills to be
insignificant. The Group had not suffered any losses
in this respect during the year.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk
by placing deposits with financial institutions with
established credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management does not expect
any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &15EAN - A A REESI))

26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 €RlEMREER A¥E (&)
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBELRER

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow and all the financial
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable
on demand as at 31 December 2015.

AEEANENELERAER
EAGNBREEE BREASA
HRHEHRENEEERIAR
NEHMER S F K A E B
& T IEE M R - BIZAR
SEFgHE-

/

ZIKEIE'JBZ RJITE ! Eﬁ?u%ﬁ
éf FERMEEERENET

P LME%/\,\E%}E%ME;EE%
RS EZ2EmMEBIRMAT
WMNEHED WENEHLE

HRFIESRBER—FKNE
WX EN_—_E—HE+_A
= +—HEZXEE HAKE
E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁag TR EYRER
BHABBRESREMRONE
BT H -

E#BE (£8)ERAF
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 €EEMREER AFLE (&)
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBESRAK (&)
The following tables show the remaining scheduled TRINTAEER®ER KRR
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s BHAARMBERERENEHE
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual B(BRReNOMNEY (NEF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments B)RBRMEHARBITHFE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on EOMNENR) R THEE R
rates current at the end of the reporting period): BRI -

Total contractual Total contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flow/within  cash flow/more

1 yearoron than1 year but Carrying
demand less than 2 years amount
BRRER
BHXREER BReREHE/
BeRELAE BR-—F
—FRAREER BREWE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFIT ARETIT
Bank borrowings $RAT B K
At 31 December 2015 N-ZZE—R%E
+-A=+—H 143,110 = 142,164
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—M4F
+=-A=+—~ 720,940 - 712,679
Trade and other payables & 5 & HfthfE{F : 18
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—A%F
+=-A=+—~ 622,053 - 622,053
At 31 December 2014 RZFT—ME
+-A=+—H 444,823 - 444,823

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
W4 Annual Report 2015
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank borrowings. The Group does not obtain any
bank borrowings and loans at variable interest rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. Details of the interest rates and
terms of bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 19.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables, cash balances and loan
balances that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk is primarily USD and
HKD.

26 ERERE

(c)

(d)

EE&/-\$E (/"/\)

A = @

$’§IE‘J%U?H|3A\I£5K§§E
1ﬁ§k 2N SE TN 3795 T YRS
BEMPBITEREER - RE
Ea’“lJT?‘ﬂE’Mﬁ?ﬂ%\$’%lﬁ
B N FER R ER - F R a9 F 15

N8R 17 18 KB IR SRR B sE 199
E':%"
& EE

$%’€Fﬁﬁ¥¢ﬁﬁfﬁ¥ﬂﬁ’*\£%
EK B E L WA - BN FRIR
RefnkEREA ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁl\ﬁg
(AEXZERNERBNINEES
AN E® ) FHERIRITE R
A Ko 35 6 Ko B/ 18 - 5| BU TR AR
MEBITE/XTRBIT

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F iR}
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s major
exposure at the end of each reporting period to

currency risk arising from recognised assets and

liabilities denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the Group to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi,

translated

using the spot rate at the end of each reporting

period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Pledged bank deposits
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Bank loans and borrowings

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

ReLkReSEY
BEARITER

B 5 REMERFR
B 5 REMEMFKR
RTEFRER

26 ERERE

(B =AHEAN UARKES)

BRQVE(E)

(d) E¥RK (Z&)

)

BEXmEgRE

TRFIAEERERE

HRFIAXHEEGER

b ZEEERRIECD®
REERBENEEGAN
AEEEEEE NG
if%%ﬂéﬁﬁ?i =
BmE - BEREELAARES

vIMX&%ﬁxmm%
B 5

usb HKD RMB

EY BT AR¥%
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
0% gEblial —F-nF Emelgiilal —F-1F Rkl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
INLE A ARETT NLAPA ARETr PNGLEwA ARETT
42,961 61,290 1,461 12,292 6,165 6,092
- 42,238 - - - -
- 501 - - - 282,754
(555,070) (193,818) (251) (1,956) - =
(88,164) (76,844) - - (54,000) (151,964)
(600,273) (166,633) 1,210 10,336 (47,835) 136,882
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous

change in the group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated

B 55 ¥R 2 B 5

31 December 2015 —E—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &15EAN - A A REESI))

26 EREREERATE (&)

(d) E¥ER (&)

BRE DT

TNRFIIAR KBRS F
(RERBEMN) MGEES
P E A D (AR E

1 B S5 54 78 45 5 5 R 4
FEBTFEEARR &

equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the group has significant exposure at the end

of the reporting period had changed at that date, wETAEMEREERED
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. MBI EE -
2014
kSl
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange  profit after Effect on exchange profit after Effect on
rates tax equity rates tax equity
HNEER HNE [ 3
t#/ HRH% R/ HERHE
(TR) RAFE HEZYE (TE&) BHTE HERYE
RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARMTR

ARBTT ARETR

UsD e 5 (25,512) (25,512) 5 (7,082) (7,082)
(5) 25,512 25,512 ®) 7,082 7,082
HKD BT 5 51 51 5 439 439
(5) (51) (51) (5) (439) (439)
RMB ARE 5 (1,958) - 5 5,716 -
(5) 1,958 - () (5,716) -

Results of the analysis above represent an TS RBEE T RS
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on ELAER e BT E MR
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits i1 m B R AR B8 42 1) & B B
measured in the respective functional currencies, TE BRTENSHRES
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling RANRITEXRBER/AR
as at the end of the respective reporting periods for A ETZA-

presentation purposes.

EsRE (£8)ERAF
20154} MkA
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency at the end of the respective reporting
periods, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis for
2014.

Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. Unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

(B =AHEAN UARKED)

26 SREREERATE (&)

(d) E¥REK (Z&)

(i)

HBESH (E)

RS AT TR RSN
kM BHEAAENHE
A S R 4% 4R 25 B T4
A% BERSNERR O SR
TA BEAEERAFR
B 30RO - 7 B
SR B RA R B A
5585 LA SN B BB o AT
IR T— AR E
T o

(e) A¥E

()

RFEIRYEMT A

TRV AEESHMT AN
ANEE ZESRTENR
CHRZEEEEETE
I 75 48 A BB B 75 R 5 ZE Al
FIRAFEAEMRTE
MM AFERE - FQF
B 2P ENERIKRE
WTEE AT i A SR
MABRENEZERERE
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s EBRIEE:EMER
A A BE (B0 R 5T
ERNHREEXEEBR
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 €EEREER A FE (&
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued) () AF¥E(E)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () RAFEIEREYLHETA (FZ)

(continueq)

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o EAEHME:FAREL2
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which A EE (Bl AksEZEST
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant ERSSECEIR- SR TN
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are )BT ARFEREKRT
inputs for which market data are not available A E R A BB EW

NEFEE TR E | A
HEAEMBSEIENE
AR

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o EBAIEE:FRERXR

significant unobservable inputs TR ER g A SRR =
A F1E

The Group has a team headed by the assistant REEH —BH 152 B)

chief financial officer performing valuations for IBESANE e T A

the financial instruments, including other financial (BEIPHEEANTEEERF

assets which are categorised into Level 2 of the BHfoMmEMemEE)E

fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the 1ThE - Z B E R

chief financial officer. A valuation report with analysis AL A o AR SR HAKR AR

of changes in fair value measurement is prepared at BINBE AT EFEEH DN
the end of each reporting period, and is reviewed ML ERE - W SEe

and approved by the chief financial officer. =N E

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
R-B-HAF+ZA=Z+-HWAFEFESER
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

—EB-1fF B &R BR2 E#&R3
RMB’000  RMB’000 US$’000 US$’000
AR®TRT AR®ETxR FER TER

Assets: gE:
Foreign currency SNE R HAA A
forward contracts 600 - 600 =

Available-for-sales A ESREE
financial assets = = - -

EsRE (£8)ERAF
2015F F iR}
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e)

Fair value (continueqd)

U

(i)

(B =AHEAN UARKES)

26 £ ELE R

EERAFYE (&)

(e) DFE(£Z)

Financial instruments carried at fair value () RAFEINKRYEHTA (&)
(continuedq)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
RZBE-—NME+-_A=+—BHNATFEHENER
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—mE B EfRe E&3
RMB’000 RMB’000 US$’'000 US$'000
ARETT AR%BTR FET FET
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sales AHEESREE
financial assets 125,377 — 125,377 —

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
in Level 2 is determined by using the forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period
and comparing to the contractual rates, with the
resulting value discounted back to the present
value.

The fair value of available-for-sales financial assets
in Level 2 is determined using discounted cash flow
models. The discount rate used is derived from the
relevant government vyield curve as at the end of
each reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015.

(i)

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

BHR2IERPAEDNAF
BEBEBFEAREHARED
ERET  WHEAKEXE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &15EAN - A A REESI))

27 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015
not provided for in the financial statements were as

27 A

(a) BAXREE

R—B—AF+=-A=+—~H
MAREEERPBRERL E

follows: REBENE N EEWNT :
2015 2014
—E-5fF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Contracted for EET49 58,915 30,757

(b) Operating lease payments

As at 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were
payable as follows:

(b) BEHAEMN

R-_ZE—RF+_-_A=+—8"

S SR &

% S Y

ARREHEENFAATELT

Within 1 year 16 A
After 1 year but within 5 years ~ 1F&ER5FER

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 2 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

2015 2014
2R —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
595 131

696 131

1,291 262
AEBRBKEHENEESZE

ME-BH—RIT REIE2
F B GRRARENBRESR
B - MO rERsAEE-

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =AHEAN UARKED)

28 EXEBARS

B 1t % B 75 S 3R E b BB 40 B BR #O R

28 Material related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered BHERIN REBEFZUATEKXR
into the following significant related party transactions: FEE T R 5

Name of related parties

BBAInsE €8

Relationship with the Group
ELR S ) B R

— Mr. He Ningning Controlling Shareholder

—AEBRE BRBE
- Heyuan CK* ([ A B AT a& M OR) BR A R]) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
—iRAT ([AA@EREMRE OTR)BRAF]) B {A] 38 58 5% A 22

- QT Investment ([ L IXREERAF L) Direct shareholder of the Company &
controlled by Mr. He Ningning

—ERIRE ([ERKRERRAA]) ZN/NCINER: 3 S0 R e s el ]

— Focus Technology Limited (“Focus”) ([ BRI AR AR ]) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

—BREREARAT ([BEE]) B ] 22 28 55 A 12 4

— Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Hong Kong Xitai”) (formerly Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
known as Kunshan Q Technology Ltd.)

—Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Ltd. ([ & &L )
( A1 f8Kunshan Q Technology Ltd.)

— Guangzhou CK Telecom Limited (“Guangzhou CK”)
(TEMNARBERMTZEERAR])

—BEMNEBERMEEERAR ([EMAR])

— CK Telecom Inc. (“CK Telecom”).

PR ] 22 28 5T A 42

Controlled by key management
personnel of the Group
HAKEFZERASES
Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

*

—CK Telecom Inc. ([CK Telecom | ) Fhy 0] 22 52 4 A o |
— Surewheel Asia Pacific Inc. (Surewheel) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
—Surewheel Asia Pacific Inc. (Surewheel) B A2 58 AL A |
- Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”) ([MZ Rl AR A 7)) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
—HZREBRAT ([ERBEFE]) F {A] 22 28 5F A 1R
— Van Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd (“Van Telecom BVI”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
—Van Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd ([MLZRIERBRELZES ) Fhy (7] 22 52 4k A o |

— C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd.* (“C-Flex Electronic”)

([FEEET TR ARAF])

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

—BAEETCTR)BRAA ([BEETF]) B {7 B2 58 4 A 4 )
— CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
—CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd R {A] B2 28 S A b |

— Chengdu CK Technology Limited* (“Chengdu CK”)

(TR RHAR AR
—REE AR AR DA (TAREFER )

The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference

only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 &15EA - A A REESI))

28 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as
follows:

Short-term employee benefits 58 Hi{& & 18 7
Post-employment benefits BB 2R
Equity compensation benefits % 4 465 12 4@ )

The above remuneration to key management personnel
is included in “staff costs” (Note 4(b)).

28 EXBBAERE (&)

(@) FEEEASEHM

TEERABEETEERH
BERARE  HEREHAKHE
B R R E T Z B A
T -BRARAES-

AREBTEEBEAEFHMER
ENARRES (MK E6FT 3
BIRETERFMESR (20K

STFTIRER) ST
2015 2014
—E-5EF —T—MFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
3,880 3,773
45 34
407 1,690
4,332 5,497

FRFEEBABHFMERN B
TIA] (BIsE4(b)) °

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F iR}
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(BR=B RPN

AAREZ)

28 ERBEBMARS (&

(b) HEBITNXS

Sales of products to
— Heyuan CK

Purchases of products from

— Van Telecom PRC
— C-Flex Electronic

Service fee to
— Guangzhou CK

Rental expenses to
— Chengdu CK

Interest expense to
— Guangzhou CK

Advances from
— Focus

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
t3fe] Annual Report 2015

EmiER
— MR R
—AEET

SR ET
— MR

NHEERXT
— B ER PR ]

XNMERXT
—BEMER

ER VL
—BE

2015 2014
—E-—hHE —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR ARETTT
69,158 70,200

= 64

1,701 2,990
1,701 3,054

84 189

131 76

= 142

= 333,041
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28 Material related party transactions 28 EXBHAERS (£)
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued) (b) HBEBAETNRS (&)

2015 2014
—E-—EHF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT

Repayment of advances from NIREEEZBAFKEUT

by cash
— Guangzhou CK —E MR - 12,000
— Focus — B E - 879,427
— Mr. He Ningning — ([ EELA - 18,256
- Van Telecom BVI -~ HMTRREBELES - 42,095
- 951,778
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EF T
Advances to BRT
- Hong Kong Xitai — BB - 39,318
Repayment of advances to AT AT &R EBFER
- Hong Kong Xitai — BB - 91,425
— Surewheel — Surewheel - 12,055
- Guangzhou CK —E M = 138,705
— CK Telecom —CK Telecom - 6
— CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd —CK Telecom Asia
Pacific Ltd - 4
- 242,195
Expenses paid on behalf of REAT—HAZARAZ
— QT Investment —ERKEE - 10

E#BE (£8)ERAF
2015F F i)}
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28 EXBBARS (&)

28 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(c) ERRARETS &5 8%

(c) Balances with related parties

R-_ZE—RAF+_A=+—8"
AEEHBEB AN T EH-

At 31 December 2015, the Group had the following
balances with related parties.

() FEREHEL

(i) Due from related parties

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Trade-related g 5 18k
Trade receivables B 5 e IE
— Heyuan CK — AR Al 13,546 29,068
Non-trade-related *E 5 iHE
Other receivables H {th e Uk 5RIE
— QT Investment —EREE - 3
(i) Due to related parties (i) FETEE A
2015 2014
—E—01fF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Trade-related g 5 18k
Trade and bills payable B S5 RNRIERENEE
— C-Flex Electronic —mAEET - 1,000
— Van Telecom PRC — M 2 BHE A 203 208
203 1,208
Non-trade-related ES= ¥l
Other payables H b fE 1~ 5RIE
— Guangzhou CK — BN F Al - 2,442

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
i[O} Annual Report 2015
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28 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties (continued)

(i) Due to related parties (continued)

()  The amounts due from/to related parties as
at 31 December 2015 were expected to be
recovered/repaid within one year.

(i) Other payables to Guangzhou CK as at
31 December 2014 included loans from
Guangzhou CK with details as disclosed in
Note 20(c).

(d) Operating lease payments

(e)

As at 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable to Chengdu CK as follows:

%ﬁﬁ%mﬁ

31 December 20156 —E—HAF+ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bﬁ%ﬁﬁ?‘aﬁﬁﬂ S AANERHES)

28 EXBABAERS (&)

()

RS SR ()

(i) EEEHRE (&)
(i) EA 3i$

Faﬂwﬁ IE%\HH;F—V}
iWHﬂZ@/ EiE

:‘f’ El'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
MR RIBBREREE
WP B R - 1B R
BﬁufZO( )TBZE%O

(d) REHEEMNRK

Within 1 year 16 A
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 BR5ER

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 2 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
continuing connected transactions

The transactions in relation to sales of products to
Heyuan CK, purchases of products from Van Telecom
PRC and C-Flex Electronic as disclosed above constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Directors Report.

R-B—RE+-A=+—8"

B4R A RS 48 & FH 4 JE 151 B
#78 A] B9 R R R AK M & R AR
BT :
2014
—2-1F —T—MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBF T
595 131
696 131
1,291 262

(e)

AEERECEBOEESE
W% < B8 4 — R0 25 A 1 =2
B AT AR 4 B R B R
B MAHT AR ARS -

B2 3 RIE R 5 AR b 7
9 PR 1
3R 2 B AT R A T
BEESD MR ERE R
LEETEEERNR HERE
BBMARSHARARABEL
MRA (T Em AR &+ A
B H T E N BER 55
ER B L RIE T MAS R
BERBERREFERE [
ErER 5] — -
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29 Company level statement of financial 29 N FEHE M &R EK
position
2015 2014
—E—-RfF —ET—NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR T AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KEWE QT 10,307 8,879
Amount due from a subsidiary & Uk — KB A RIZIE 519,513 489,543
529,820 498,422
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At fE W kI8 - 445
Amount due from a subsidiary & Uk — fE M B A Rl IE 189,925 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 7,827 174,800
197,752 175,245
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e 508 1,420 16,736
Net current assets REBEEFRE 196,332 158,509
Total assets less current HWEERABER
liabilities 726,152 656,931
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E
Share capital f& A 25(c) 8,132 7,908
Reserves & 25(a) 718,020 649,023
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 726,152 656,931
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EFEen - "F=ZA_-_+mWmH
on 24 March 2016. 1% 30 5T 0] 3 o
He Ningning A ZEE =
Directors EZE
Wang Jiangiang T e

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
KA Annual Report 2015
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30 Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in Note 1. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these
financial statements.

(@) Fair value of financial instruments

For other financial assets, the Group determines fair
values using discounted cash flow models, as well as
other types of valuation model. Assumptions and inputs
used in valuation techniques include discount rate
and the expected return. Where discounted cash flow
techniques are used, estimated cash flows are based
on management’s best estimates and the discount rate
used is estimated based on the risk free interest rate
plus credit spread of comparable bonds with similar
credit rating, coupons and maturities. Where other
pricing models are used, inputs are based on observable
market data at each of the reporting period dates.

30 EREFHEFH R H K
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30 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b) Depreciation and amortisation

(c)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Impairments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to level of
sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales
revenue and amount of operating costs.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
KeZY Annual Report 2015
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30 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

(e)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. Any change in the
assumptions would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals of write-
down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net
assets value. The Group reassesses these estimates
annually.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables by assessing the
recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances annually.

31 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

31 BE

30 EXRGEHAET RAM (&)
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31 Possible impact of amendments, new 31
standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2015 (continued)

(B =AHEAN UARKES)

BE-E-AF+=f
=+— AL EEREMEY
SRR - AT RAIRR
BT RERE (F

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTF BN ZEEBD
SETHBEN

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

BRI EREEN - FE_T-—MFBHNFEIE

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation

BIfR & 2= RSB 165% K BER & 51 E A 5385k (BFTA) -
BB AR HT B R a7 =

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

BIRR & et RSBk (BRTA) - K 5Fa 2/

Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure initiative

Rt ERIETR (BRTAR) & EE

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses

BFR e ERIFE125 (BRIA) @ Frietd — A B L 1R

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BIPR Bt S I E RIS 155E - & P AT v & Aa i a

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)

BRI R = ERNBOW 2@ TR (—F—HF)

IFRS 16, Leases

BRI s S ERIE 165 HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the impact of these amendments and new standards

is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it

has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
32 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 32
As at 31 December 2015, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party of the Company to be QT
Investment, which is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Company to be Mr. He Ningning.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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